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Overview of Agency 

Executive Summary 
Governing Council Chairperson’s report 

The challenges we anticipated this time last year have transpired. We have seen the 

resources industry in the Pilbara transition from construction lead growth to ongoing 

operations at a time of dramatically lower commodity prices. We have seen the 

introduction of the new funding model and as a consequence to the changing demands 

have had to be responsive in both our course delivery and our structure and resources. 

These changes are all challenging, however under the leadership of the Governing 

Council and Managing Director, Marlene Boundy, we have been able implement 

approaches which position us well to ensure we are focusing on the training needs of 

the region. 

Throughout the year we reviewed the strategic plan for the organisation. This has lead 

us to ensure we are contributing to and supporting the economic and social growth of 

the Pilbara region, building networks and partnerships to support economic prosperity 

of the region and are working smarter. 

It is imperative for us to ensure the experiences of each and every student is of high 

quality and valued by the employers who are the ultimate beneficiaries of the work we 

do. Without this we do not have demand for our services and while we may be located 

in the region, we cannot take this for granted. To be the trainer of choice we need to 

offer quality, timely and effective training. 

We have the ability to transform individual’s lives by being able to provide them with 

skills and qualifications to enable them to achieve their full potential. It is through 

demonstrating our values of respecting difference in culture, values and opinions, 

being accountable for delivering what we say we will and showing leadership that we 

will achieve this. 

I would like to thank the Governing Council members and in particular Marlene Boundy 

for her leadership over the last twelve months. Her relentless drive to address issues 
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has seen a number of significant changes which will lead to positive outcomes for the 

organisation in the coming years. 

The next twelve months will continue to be a challenge. But this will also provide us 

with opportunity to be innovative in how we respond to this. I invite all staff at Pilbara 

Institute and the Pilbara community to join us in responding to this challenge and 

identify how, through innovation, we can deliver quality training in a cost constrained 

environment. 

Chairperson 
Governing Council 
Pilbara Institute 
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Managing Director’s report 

2014 has been a formative year. It commenced with new leadership 

and the need for a review of all business activities and work practices. 

Prior to the commencement of our enrolment period, all staff gathered 

for the 2 day professional development forum. This gave all staff the 

opportunity to participate in changes occurring across the VET sector, 

valuable insight and learnings from experienced VET practitioners 

from interstate along with some experienced change agents who paved the way for 

our year ahead. 

Student satisfaction surveys and graduate outcomes continue to be a key factor in the 

critical measures applied for any State Training Provider. Pilbara Institute has once 

again achieved an above state average rating in student satisfaction. 

We have seen our graduates and students achieve outstanding accolades in a 

number of State events. Two students received their gold medals in the World Skills 

competition. Congratulations go to these students and to their lecturers who support 

the students in their endeavours. 

Our staff have also achieved outstanding results not only personally but professionally. 

Lecturer in Access and Participation Lesley Misarz received a Young Professional 

Award in December 2014, nominated for her work with the LEAPS program in 

Karratha. 

The LEAPS program is run in conjunction with Karratha Senior High School to engage 

youth who are at risk of becoming disengaged. The program has seen terrific success 

in increasing attendance rates of participants. 

Pilbara Institute has been affected by the impact of the changes to resource sector 

projects. The Institute has taken a bigger hit during 2014 and was more than was 

forecasted. This has resulted in several million dollars being handed back to the 

Department due to the Institute’s inability to meet set targets. 

The Institute continues to be a significant business and contributor to social capital 

across The Pilbara with us employing over 196 staff. Our lecturing teams have trained 

approximately 4,000 students and in light of the “mobile workforce” for which The 
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Pilbara is most famous, this is probably a significant achievement that needs to be 

acknowledged for both the community and our staff. In 2014, the Institute delivered 

approximately 570,000 government-funded training hours. At the same time, the 

Institute provided customized training programs for industry and community.  Pilbara 

Institute has worked in 

collaboration with the Pilbara 

Development Commission, the 

City of Karratha, the Town of 

Port Hedland, the Shires of 

East Pilbara and Ashburton to 

ensure that local training needs 

and direction for training is met. 

Delivery to Aboriginal people in 

partnership with Fortescue 

Metals  Group  and  Rio  Tinto 

has increased enabling students from the local communities of Roebourne and 

Pundulmurra to gain work readiness skills. These programs have provided 

opportunities for participating students to gain employment in the resource sector 

workforce. We have continued our commitment to the youth across The Pilbara by 

engaging with all the major secondary schools to delivery training to senior secondary 

school students and by expanding our programs for disengaged youth. During 2014, 

the 181 school students enrolled in a Vet qualification at Certificate II level, achieved 

outstanding results. In fact, the Pilbara regional schools in partnership with Pilbara 

Institute achieved 95% completion rate. 

Preparatory programs have seen a significant increase 

during 2014 and continue to underpin the training 

prerequisites for pathways to employment and further 

training. These achievements are by no means easy in 

an environment that is changing rapidly and presents us 

with challenges at every turn. It’s not only the long 

distances between our delivery sites but the isolation 

which impacts on delivery costs and the risks associated 

with rural and remote delivery.  Our students are also faced with the challenges of 
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further training and employment pathways being located some distances from their 

community. 

Pilbara Institute has been established and resourced on a range of historical funding 

models. With significant funding changes implemented, it has required a review of all 

business activities, work practices and a need to reflect on the business of training 

and how it is managed. Pilbara Institute Corporate Executive will continue to review 

the activity and performance in light of these changes to funding. 

I am pleased to report that the business improvements that have been implemented 

late in 2014, will equip the Institute in meeting the challenges of the future and ensure 

that Pilbara Institute continues to be a major contributor to community and economic 

development in The Pilbara. 

Marlene Boundy 
Managing Director 
Pilbara Institute 
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Pilbara Institute Governing Council 

NAME PRESENT 

POSITION 

Chairperson - Nicole Roocke Deputy Chief Executive 
Chamber of Minerals and Energy 

Deputy Chairperson - John Lally Chief Executive Officer 
Karratha and Districts Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry 

Darren Lundberg Project Team Leader - Community and 
Essential Infrastructure (Wheatstone)Chevron 

Sharon Viles Manager Trades Training 
Rio Tinto Iron Ore 

Damien Ardagh VTEC Superintendent 
Fortescue Metals Group 

Craig Bonney Senior Indigenous Employment Advisor 
Woodside 

Tony (Anthony) Evans Wheatstone JV Management 
Chevron 

Kylie Bosich Regional Director of Nursing and Midwifery 

Marlene Boundy Managing Director 
Pilbara Institute 
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2014 Operational Structure 
Pilbara Institute is a multi-campus training institute with campuses in Karratha, South Hedland, 
Pundulmurra, Roebourne, Tom Price, Newman and Onslow. 

Honourable Dr Kim Hames MB BS JP MLA 
Minister for Training and Workforce Development 

Pilbara Institute 
Governing Council Chair 
Person Nicole Roocke 

Managing 
Director Marlene 

Boundy 

Director Training 
& Innovation 
Alison Traine 

Director Business 
Development 
Jan Edwards 

Director 
Corporate 
Services 

Craig Holland 

Community & 
Industry Skills 
(East & West) 

Health & 
Community 

Services 
(East & West) 

Trades 

Commerce 

Aboriginal 
Education & 

Support 

Pilbara Skills 
Centre 

Marketing & 
Communications 

Client Services 

Performance & 
Planning 

Business 
Systems 

Property & 
Facilities 

Human 
Resources 

Finance & 
Contractual 
Services 

Information 
Technology 

Library & Records 
Services 
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New Organisational Structure (Implemented November 2014) 
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Operational overview 

Located in a region covering 507,896 square kilometres and serving a population of 

63,950, Pilbara Institute is the largest training provider in North West WA. 

Pilbara Institute enrolled approximately 4,000 students in 2014 and is the largest 

trainer of apprentices and trainees in the region. 

Students were enrolled at the Institute’s campuses in Karratha, South Hedland, 

Pundulmurra, Roebourne, Newman, Tom Price and Onslow. 

Where there has been training demand, Pilbara Institute’s lecturing staff have travelled 

throughout the region to deliver training onsite for and with industry including pre- 

employment training for Aboriginal communities. 

Programs which range from entry level Certificate 1 training through to Advanced 

Diploma, are delivered across multiple sites including delivery such as community 

Capacity-Building programs (literacy and numeracy, Work Readiness and Return to 

Work). The Institute has a broad range of courses specifically designed to meet the 

needs of enterprises and industry. 

Delivery methods are varied to meet the needs of learners with lecturers 

acknowledging that face to face delivery may not suit all learners. Flexible options 

such as on the job, e-learning or a “blended mode” has offered students a range of 

options when enrolling. Block release was offered to the employers for apprentices 

and trainees coupled with on the job assessments giving stakeholders options to suit 

their needs. 

Karratha and South Hedland campuses were the major sites for all enrolments and 

activity. 

Pilbara Institute has continued to work with community organisations to improve 

collaboration between all stakeholders, ultimately ensuring better outcomes for clients. 

Partnerships with schools and industry have enabled a range of pre-employments 

programs to assist learners with preparatory skills that lead to further training. 

The Institute undertook a review with a view to improving the service delivery models 

to ensure all services were streamlined offering training services to the community, in 

a more effective and efficient manner. For example after statistics were taken and 

analysed as to the number of enquiries at each campus, a trial was implemented 



13
3

introducing a 1300 number which offered a one-stop approach service for client 

enquiries across all campuses. 

The aim is to minimise the duplication of functions across multiple sites. Students and 

clients will continue to have access to course information and offerings of customised 

training. Improvements to website access, telephone enquiries and on-line applications 

has enabled “instant” services to clients. 

The Pilbara 

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report
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Snapshot of our performance 

Major achievements 

New Student Accommodation in South Hedland 

The 14 fully furnished, self-contained apartments on Somerset Crescent, South 
Hedland for student accommodation will be available from early 2015 to assist 
traveling students who need a home-away-from-home while attending training Pilbara 
Institute.  

Managing Director Marlene Boundy said the apartments will be a great benefit to the 
many students who travel across the Pilbara to attend classes.  

“As the largest training provider for apprentices and trainees in the region, Pilbara 
Institute is committed to ensuring all have the same opportunities for training no matter 
where they reside in the region,” Ms Boundy said.  

“We provide accommodation to apprentices, trainees and Pilbara Institute students to 
ensure they can attend their training without the added stress of finding 
accommodation themselves.”  

Pilbara Institute staff and those who are on Pilbara Institute business will be 
accommodated to allow efficient delivery of training to the region. 

New South Hedland accommodation 
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Student satisfaction remains high 

In the 2014 Training WA Student Satisfaction Survey, 87.3% of students who 
responded were either very satisfied or satisfied with their chosen course at Pilbara 
Institute.  

Compared to the State average of 85.9% Pilbara Institute has continued to better the 
state average for the last two years.   

Aboriginal students’ numbers doubled in past year 

Aboriginal apprenticeship and traineeship delivery has experienced significant growth. 
There were 41 aboriginal apprentice/trainees enrolled in 2014 compared to 23 in 2013. 
The majority of apprenticeship and traineeship delivery was provided from Karratha 
and South Hedland campuses.  

The Institute maintained relationships with Employment Based Training (EBT) 
stakeholders such as ApprentiCentre, Chamber of Commerce and Industry (CCI) 
Apprenticeship Solutions, Apprenticeships Australia, Electrical Group Training, 
Skillhire, and Kimberley Group Training in 2014.   

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report
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WorldSkills 

Pilbara Institute was represented at The WorldSkills 2014 competition which 

recognises the skills and hard work of our apprentices and trainees. 

Two mechanical trade candidates from Pilbara Institute attended the Perth Award 

Ceremony last year to collect their award from the 2013 WorldSkills competition. Matt 

Smith and Hatady Bob tied to receive a gold medal and Dylan Whittles received a 

silver medal. 

Three apprentices from Pilbara Institute competed in the September 2014 Perth 

National Finals of the competition. They were:- 

Ebony Couzens – Business Services,  

Shoulhie Artie – Electrical Control  

Hatady Ain – Fitting.  

Mathew Smith - WorldSkills  

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report
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Mobile Training Unit expands reach 

The Institute’s Mobile Training Unit delivered a variety of training across 12 industry 
areas to remote locations throughout the Pilbara, including Cotton Creek, Gooda 
Binya, Irrungadi, Karajini, Kunnawarritji, Marble Bar, Ngurrawaana, Nullagine and 
Punju Njamal. 

Community picnic table project 
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New Website for Pilbara Institute 

Pilbara Institute launched a new website on May 14 2014 to improve the user 
experience with provision for new configuration, design and branding.  The website 
was completed in eight weeks and has been created as a content managed system 
with the capacity to receive online enquiries. It was also designed to be more mobile-
user friendly with the design configured for both Android and iPhone platforms. 

This significant upgrade has enabled users to access information 24/7 on all Pilbara 
Institute’s courses with capability to send enquiries at all times. 

Since May, there has been an increase in traffic to Pilbara Institute’s website. 
Comparative to the previous year, there were 22.26% more sessions on the website 
with 40.44% increase in the number of users from May to December. 17.18% of 
website traffic occurred on a mobile device, an increase of 9% from the previous site. 

The website generated over 1,000 online enquiries to the Institute between April and 
December 2014 with an average of 142 per month. Preliminary data is also indicating 
that the website is responsible for 46% of the enquiries to the 1300 enquiry line.  

Pilbara Institute is making further improvements to the Search Engine Optimisation on 
the new website, increasing the organic traffic.  

Development on the website is ongoing with the additions of online booking forms for 
student accommodation and an online application form for courses.  The aim is to 
increase the functionality of the website to continuously improve the user experience. 

46%

10%

17%

1%
3%

12%

1%
10%

How did you hear about PI?
23 Sept - 12 Nov 2014

Website

Radio

Centro display

Course calendar
displayed around
town
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Vocational Education and training for schools 

Pilbara Institute has had a longstanding relationship with schools across the region. 
The Institute is a member of the Pilbara VET Network comprising of all secondary 
schools across the Pilbara including several private training organisations.  The aim is 
to ensure that secondary school students in Years 11 & 12 have the opportunity to 
undertake a VET qualification at Certificate 2 level whilst still enrolled at school. In 
2014, 181 school students were involved in the VET partnership.  The Pilbara 
region achieved approximately 95% completions which has been recongised as a 
significant achievement.  The state average for VET completions was 38% in 2014.  

Citation for significant VETiS achievement 
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Performance Management Framework 
The following outlines links between Government goals and Pilbara Institute strategic 
outcomes. 

Major projects building our capacity 

With the support of the Western  Australian Government, Pilbara Institute has 
a strong focus on building strategic infrastructure that provides state of the art 
training facilities that leads to the creation of jobs and underpins Western 
Australia’s long-term economic development. 

In 2012 Pilbara Institute received $15.56million through the Royalties for 
Regions program to upgrade services infrastructure and buildings on the 
Karratha, South Hedland and Pundulmurra Campuses. $5.1million of these 
funds were allocated to the construction of the new Skills Training Centre in 
Karratha which is due for completion in March 2015 

An alliance established in 2012 with Woodside and Pilbara Institute, set a 
benchmark for industry-standard training, for an electro-technology centre to be 
constructed in Karratha.  This will allow apprentices across the Pilbara to learn 
their trade on the latest equipment, using cutting edge technology.  This 
construction is due for completion in 2016.   

High Risk training area 
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In October 2013, there was a joint ministerial announcement for funding through 
Royalties for Regions to the value of $18.1million. The facilities to be 
constructed are an essential part of the Institute’s Strategic Infrastructure Plan 
and will provide new and industry relevant training centres for students in the 
Pilbara. 

Part of this funding is being used to build a Health and Community Services 
Training Centre at Pundulmurra Campus. The construction will commence in 
2015 with the building due for completion for the commencement of the 2017 
academic year. Preliminary works for clearing the site around the Pundulmurra 
campus of the asbestos clad houses commenced in late 2014.    

The commencement of the Health and Community services training Centre on 
Pundulmurra Campus signifies the beginning of the consolidation of South 
Hedland Campus with Pundulmurra campus. Planning has been undertaken 
for relocation of staff and training facilities. Staff will be transitioning to 
Pundulmurra campus in early 2015.   

Laying the foundations of sustainable practices 

In 2014 Pilbara Institute experienced a decline in enrolment numbers with most 
delivery areas experiencing the impact of this decline. An organisational 
realignment of staffing and services was implemented in late 2014.   

The budgeting process undertaken ensured appropriate financial resources 
were allocated for the delivery of programs and services whilst being able to 
meet government required efficiencies. Further reviews will be undertaken to 
ensure that services match the current demand for training across the region. 
Pilbara Institute worked in partnership commencing pilot initiatives with other 
State Training Providers (STPs) to address duplication of functional services 
across the sector.  Initiatives such as sharing resources and combining services 
was trialled.  Examples of partnerships across the STP network have been in 
quality and audit practices, sharing of expertise in development of systems and 
teaching resource development.     

Results-based Service Delivery 

In response to key resource industry partners, the Institute expanded the 
number of “Work Readiness” programs for Aboriginal clients. Partnership 
arrangements with Rio Tinto, BHP, FMG, Woodside, Chevron, Newcrest with 
the intent of providing training to students on campus and on the job has given 
relevance to the learners and ensured transfer of skills and knowledge to 
employment. 1 

1 Strategic Direction 4: Building Organisational Capability, Competiveness and Sustainability 
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Social and Environmental Responsibility 
Pilbara Institute responded to social and environmental responsibility through 
the Safety & Health Committee which has established a number of 
subcommittees to work on campus specific issues to raise awareness and 
implement initiatives to promote sustainable and environmentally aware 
methods of doing business. For example, in April 2014 the Pundulmurra 
Campus was awarded a Platinum Award from Water Corporation as a 
Waterwise Business for the year 2012/13 for improving water efficiency by  
more than 50 per cent. 

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report
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Vision, mission and values 
In 2014 Pilbara Institute aligned the planning and operations to its Strategic Plan as 
well as state and national training priorities. The vision and values continued to be 
key elements of the Institute’s operations.  

Vision 

Skilling the Pilbara workforce, 
individuals and community. 

Mission Statement 

To provide quality education and 
training for workforce, industry 
and community development.
Values 

Responsiveness We will ensure our products are aligned 
with our clients’   needs. 

Reliability  Our services are of a high standard,  
current and delivered in a timely manner. 

Innovation  We utilise new ideas and new ways of 
working to improve service delivery. 

Professionalism  We are honest, respectful and ethical in 
dealing with our clients and colleagues. 

Learning  We commit to lifelong skills development. 

Strategic Direction 1: 
Building a Skilled 
Workforce in the Pilbara 

Strategic Direction 2: 

Contributing to  
Regional Development 

Strategic Direction 3: 

Building Stakeholder 
Relationships 

Strategic Direction 4: 

Building Organisational 
Capability, Competitivenes
and Sustainability 

Strategic Direction 5: 

Building Individual 
Capability 

2014 
Strategic 
Direction  
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Agency Performance  
1. Support Training Opportunities for Aboriginal
People 

To ensure that Pilbara Institute provides training opportunities that are 
meaningful, relevant and contribute to full participation by Aboriginal people of 

the Pilbara in education, training and employment 

Pilbara Institute Aboriginal Support unit 
provides an important point of responsibility 
for Aboriginal engagement in Education and 
Training.  
Performance outcomes for Aboriginal 
Training focussed on how the Institute 
contributed to tailored training and 
education for Aboriginal people on remote 
communities. These outcomes were 
achieved by:  

 Providing tutorial support for 
Aboriginal students in mainstream 
Vocational Education & Training 
programs.  

 Aboriginal Support Officers visited 
communities where training was 
taking place.  

 Ensuring that potential students and 
existing students are aware of the 
Aboriginal Services Unit, its staff and 
the support that is available.  

The Institute established partnerships with 
job networks to engage employers of 
Aboriginal people in employing apprentices 
and trainees. In 2014, forty-one Aboriginal 
students took up either an apprenticeship or 
a traineeship.  

Engaging with communities and 
industry 
Many partnerships were established with 
local resource companies to provide  

training in Resources and Infrastructure for 
Rio Tinto (21 students); Surface Extraction 
for Woodside Trainees (30 students) and 
Warehouse Operations for Chevron (9 
Students). 

The Institute’s Stakeholder Engagement 
Strategy for Aboriginal Training was 
realised through the Aboriginal Education, 
Employment and Training Committee 
(AEETC). In 2014 AEETC was successful 
in obtaining new members resulting in a 
strong representation from across the 
Pilbara. 

Service to regional and remote areas 
continued through community consultation 
and collaboration with the Aboriginal 
Employment, Education & Training 
Committee and in response to the training 
and education needs identified in the 
Pilbara Workforce Development Plan 
(PWDP).  A proportion of delivery in 
regional and remote areas is conducted 
on site or in the community.

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report
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2. Build and Sustain Industry and Community
Relationships 

 Pilbara Institute engages with a range of stakeholders to pursue its strategic and 
operational objectives. To improve responsiveness between stakeholders and Pilbara 

Institute 

In its pursuit in achieving the Institute’s 
strategic and operational objectives the 
Institute engaged with stakeholders to 
establish partnerships and synergies to 
meet local training demands. 

Curtin University Distributed Learning  

Pilbara Institute enabled local students to 
participate remotely in classes conducted 
by Curtin University for the Bachelor of 
Nursing – Enrolled Nurse to Registered 
Nurse Stream.   

Student participation increased from two 
students in 2013, to six students in 2014. 
Planning and marketing occurred to expand 
the range of health science degrees in the 
Pilbara in 2015, including degrees in 
Psychology; Health Promotion; Health, 
Safety and Environment; and Health 
Information Management.  

Equipment in the specialised distributed 
learning classroom was upgraded to 
provide for “virtual” participation in Perth 
classes using the latest technology.  The 
project provides a firm foundation for further 
collaborative work with Curtin University 
into the future, along with wider 
opportunities for local participation in higher 
education.  

Master Builders Association 

The partnership was struck with the Master 
Builders Association to have training as a 
standing item on their regional meeting 

agenda. The meetings were held at 
Pundulmurra campus.  

Training opportunities were identified with 
the view to develop training pathways for 
local students. 

New Construction of Training Areas 

Throughout the year Pilbara Institute has 
engaged stakeholders in the development 
of new infrastructure.  

Woodside Petroleum, Rio Tinto,  and 
several local contractors have offered 
advice and informed the Institute of their 
training needs for the newly planned 
Electro-technology building and the 
Industrial Skills area.  

The new buildings will increase the training 
and education opportunities available in the 
Pilbara. 

Roebourne Regional Prison 

Work continued between the Institute and 
the Roebourne Regional Prison with in-
mates completing qualifications in the areas 
of hospitality, automotive, horticulture, 
agriculture, work, health & safety, and 
resources and infrastructure in-house and 
construction and warehousing operations at 
project sites across the region.
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3. Develop Our People

To ensure that we have the right people with the right skills to meet current and future 
demand for our services 

Pilbara Institute is committed to ensure we 
have the right people with the right skills to 
meet current and future demand for our 
services. 

Throughout 2014 the Institute staff 
continued to access a range of personal and 
professional development activities, 
including qualification upgrades, 
management and leadership development 
programs to support its desired culture and 
enhance organisational capacity. 

These programs included a focus on more 
effective work practices with several well 
subscribed courses in:  

Australian Core Skills Framework 
Information session on the content of the 
Australian Core Skills Framework (ACSF). 
All Pilbara Institute lecturing staff attended. 

LLN Unit of Competence 
Three day workshops updating the 
Language, Literacy and Numeracy (LLN) 
unit of competence. 

RPL 1-2-3-4  
The provision of effective and efficient 
strategies for the design, delivery and 
validation of RPL assessment systems and 
developing assessment tools to gather 
evidence. Twenty lecturing staff attended. 

Quality Training & Continuous 
Improvement 
Aimed to give Lecturers a better 
understanding of the Academic Audit 
Process.  The Workshop looked at: 

 The Audit process 

 AQTF Standards 
 Quality 
 What do Auditors actually look at/ 

the environment 
 Planning and preparation 
 Strategies for continuous 

improvement. 

Training Excellence Program 
An introduction to new and casual lecturers 
to teaching, learning and assessment 
practices throughout Pilbara Institute.   

e-Learning 
To develop and promote Lecturer skills in 
provision of online Learning Management 
Systems: 

 Adobe Live Cycle-To focus on the 
environment through the introduction 
of active PDF documents and 
replace paper based documentation. 

 Go-To Meetings.  Live face-to-face 
interaction with our learners using 
the Internet and Go-To Meeting. 

 Webinar Based Learning & 
Information sessions provided by 
various external providers. 

 Share-Point (Pilbara Institute 
Intranet 

 e-Learning & e-Assessment 
 Digital Storytelling 
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4. Provide Quality Training and Assessment

 To provide high quality training and assessment for clients 

Pilbara Institute introduced 17 new 
qualifications onto its scope of training 
delivery in 2014 and replaced 16 further 
qualifications which had undergone review.  
12 Qualifications were removed mainly in the 
area of Information Technology, Horticulture. 
Rural Skills and Environmental Health due 
lack of demand. 

New qualifications received accreditation and 
added to the Institute’s scope of training 
delivery in 2014 were in the areas of Electro-
technology, Automotive, Education Support, 
Early Childhood Education and Care, 
Tourism, Rail Network Control, Cleaning 
Operations, Retail Services, General 
Education and Language, Literacy and 
Numeracy Skills. Stand-alone units of 
competency included Gas Test Atmospheres 
and Provide Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 
were also introduced 

Qualifications reviewed and updated to the 
latest Training Package in 2014 were in the 
areas of Light Vehicle Mechanical 
Technology, Hospitality, Commercial 
Cookery, Kitchen Operations, Horticulture, 
Surface Extraction, Vocational Study Skills, 
Spoken and Written English and maintaining 
a four wheel drive vehicle. 

Pilbara Institute has purposefully aligned its 
scope and delivery to skills shortage areas. 
Skills Shortage delivery accounted for 31% of 
overall delivery under profile.  
Pilbara Institute seeks to provide quality 
training & assessment resources: Planning 
took place for a new Health & Community 

Services Training Centre. Substantial work 
has gone into advising the architect and 
building consultants on design of the new 
Centre which will include a Simulation wing 
with 8-bed ward and simulated home 
environment, 7 classrooms, staff 
accommodation, and student space.  The 
new Centre is scheduled to be completed in 
the first half of 2016. 

Local VETiS students participate in a range 
of training programs in AgriFood Operations, 
Horticulture, Automotive, Construction, 
Industrial Skills, Resources and 
Infrastructure, Visual Arts, Community 
Services, Hospitality, Kitchen Operations, 
Disability, Leadership, Business, 
Engineering and Electro-technology. 

WorldSkills 
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VETiS Try a Trade 

We extended the range or number of 
programs available on-line or via eLearning 
notably with the Diploma of Enrolled Nursing 
now being delivered via Moodle for both 
internal and external students; 

We expanded on-line delivery: Early 
childhood Education & care (ECE&C) 
courses now being offered fully online with 
work underway for Education Support 
qualifications to also be delivered online. 

Supported new requirements for teachers’ 
assistants and Aboriginal & Islander 
Education Officers (AIEOs) to be formally 
qualified. The Institute continued to deliver 
Cert III and IV Education Support 
qualifications with a total of 72 students 
participating in CHC30812 Cert III Education 
Support, and following availability of the new 
version of the qualification CHC30213 10 
students chose to transition into the new 
version, while a further 47 new students 

enrolled in the new CHC30213.  A total of 12 
students enrolled in the Cert IV Education 
Support which provides for higher 
qualifications and up-skilling of qualified 
teachers assistants.   

 Continued delivery of Children’s Services 
qualifications, with a total of 124 students 
enrolled during 2014 in old and/or new 
versions of the Cert III and Diploma, along 
with the Advanced Diploma now being 
phased out. PI responded to training demand 
from local health providers and schools. 
Tourism qualifications were added to Scope.  

 Hospitality training is delivered to students 
including schools in a flexible work-based 
delivery mode along with campus-based 
entry level training and VET in Schools 
including new industry relationships 
developed with employers such as Sodexho 
and Spotless. 

Construction Try a Trade 1 

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report



Pilbara Institute   l   2014 Annual Report    30 
30

5. Increasing Commercial Revenue

 Increase commercial activity by implementing a revised business development model 

In 2014 the Institute successfully obtained 
funding to deliver training in the Youth 
Engagement Strategy. This program aimed 
at assisting those school age students who 
were disengaged from the school system. 

Students from a broad range of backgrounds 
enrolled in Try a Trade training in the 
construction industry and successfully 
completed the training opening up a pathway 
to further studies employment in the 
construction industry. 

Six Try a Trade courses were delivered over 
2014. 

Pilbara Institute, through its commercial arm, 
Pilbara Skills Centre, offered fee for service 
training in the areas of: Construction, Mining, 
Transport & Logistics, High Risk Licences, 
Safety, Engineering, Electrical, Workplace 
Health & Safety, Business, Human 
Resources, Training and Assessment, 
Management, Civil Construction, Health and 
Hospitality.   

A range of short courses customised to meet 
the needs of industry and the community 
were also offered. Examples being snake 
handling, computing and first aid. 

Pilbara Institute offered advice to industry, 
business and individual’s such as training 
needs analysis including advice on trends 
and all training needs. 

Courses were evaluated to ensure that the 
offering met the requirements of clients. 
These courses were often customised and 
site specific and contextualised to ensure the 
training was relevant.  

In December 2014 Fee-for-Service income 
reached $2,790,917, an increase of 11% on 
2014 predicted revenue and 24% above 
2013 income. 

WorldSkills participants 
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6. Managing Risk

 We will manage risks which adversely impact on the Institute staff, assets, customers, 
functions, objectives, and operations 

As part of the Institute’s annual Risk 
Management program and commitment to 
continuous improvement, the Institute 
undertook an annual review of its Risk 
Management Policy and Risk Management 
Plan to ensure its risk management 
framework supported the Institute’s 
strategic and operational plans. 

During 2014, the Institute’s Risk 
Management policy, procedure and Fraud 
and Corruption Framework were updated. 

A review of the Pilbara Institute Continuity 
Plan has commenced and will be finalised 
early in 2015. 

As one of the Institute series of change 
management initiatives Corporate 
Executive reviewed the Governance 
Framework. A new Framework will be 
launched in early 2015. 

Pilbara Institute submitted a Governance 
Maturity Assessment to the Department of 
training and Workforce Development 
(DTWD) in 2014 using the Governance 
Manager which is a governance maturity 
management tool supplied by DTWD. 

VTEC graduation 

Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report



Pilbara Institute   l   2014 Annual Report      32 
38 

7. Business Success

 To ensure our continued success we will use our values as a foundation 

Defining the Client Experience 

Client Services staff and other key 
personnel held workshops at Roebourne, 
Karratha and Hedland campuses to focus 
on the needs of different client groups 
accessing training at Pilbara Institute. An 
Institute survey followed which identified 
areas where improvements could be made 
to lift the customer experience. 

A workshop followed focusing on course 
information, responsiveness and enrolment 
processes, to share good practice and 
examine how we currently ‘do business’ and 
how we could ‘do business’ into the future. 

The outcomes were: 

Establishment of PI Central 

A six month pilot project to implement PI 
Central to answer all 1300 calls and 
website enquiries on courses.  The 
work undertaken at PI Central 
included:  course queries, phone 
enrolments, website edits to update 
information.   

Improving the Customer Experience 

A customer experience workshop was 
held to focus on enrolment processes 
and enrolment information including 
resource fees.   

Internal Communication 

Information Technology was improved with 
the successful implementation of wireless 
network across Pilbara Institute. Students 
have capability to access the internet in any 
classroom on any campus. 

Business Improvements 

 In August 2014, Pilbara Institute 
commenced a realignment of staffing with 
the goal of minimising duplication of effort 
across the Institute. Corporate Executive 
looked to facilitate a holistic approach to 
service delivery, information sharing and 
best practice and commenced planning to 
reform the client service team into two 
conceptual hubs to service the needs of the 
region’s eastern and western clientele.  
The Institute also undertook planning to 
strengthen its commitment to quality, 
planning and governance. 

Pilbara Institute staff were given the 
opportunity to supply feedback about the 
proposed staff realignment through 
submissions to the Joint Consultative 
Committee; completion of a questionnaire 
and a staff feedback email address. 

Frequently Asked Questions and tips for 
managing a changing work environment 
were published on the Staff Central intranet 
and staff was encouraged to access the 
Optium Employee Assistance Program 
(EAP) if needed. 
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Significant Issues 
Pilbara Institute has struggled with the high cost of delivery in the Pilbara region.  Since 2003, 
the State Government sought to improve operational viability by amalgamating East Pilbara 
College of TAFE and West Pilbara College of TAFE to create Pilbara TAFE (now Pilbara 
Institute).  Despite a broad range of improvement strategies, training demand has continued to 
decline with Pilbara Institute returning state funding to the Department in 2014.  

Issue Impact Mitigation 

Pilbara resource sector 

projects moved from 

construction to operations 

phases 

Decline in training demand Reduce operating costs 

whilst achieving training 

outcomes within budget 

Employers choosing to fly 

their employees to Perth 

A decline in the demand for 

apprenticeship training  

A revised staffing structure 

Partnerships with other 

STPs 

Services duplicated across 

campuses 

Little or no return on 

investment 

Re-organise training 

services and delivery of 

support services including 

facilities management to 

improve business operations 

Students and 

employers are choosing not 

to train locally 

Unable to achieve training 

targets 

Establish partnerships, 

identifying the synergies and 

working in a 

shared model of delivery 

with STPs. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 
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Auditor General 

7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Parliament of Western Australia 

PILBARA INSTITUTE 

Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Pilbara Institute. 

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014, 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Governing Council determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Governing Council, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Pilbara Institute at 31 December 2014 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Pilbara Institute during the year ended 
31 December 2014. 

Controls exercised by the Pilbara Institute are those policies and procedures established by the 
Governing Council to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 

Governing Council’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Governing Council is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Pilbara Institute based on my audit conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls 
to ensure that the Institute complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation 
of relevant controls. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Pilbara Institute are sufficiently adequate to provide 
reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition 
and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative 
provisions during the year ended 31 December 2014. 

Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Pilbara Institute for the year ended 
31 December 2014.  

The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 

Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Governing Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Governing Council determines necessary 
to ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Governing Council’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Pilbara Institute are relevant and appropriate 
to assist users to assess the Institute’s performance and fairly represent indicated performance 
for the year ended 31 December 2014. 

Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Pilbara Institute for the year ended 31 December 2014 included on the Institute’s website. The 
Institute’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Institute’s website. This audit does 
not provide assurance on the integrity of the Institute’s website. The auditor’s report refers only 
to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. It does not provide 
an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial 
statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and key 
performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a 
website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key 
performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the 
financial statements and key performance indicators. 

GLEN CLARKE 
DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
6 March 2015 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PILBARA INSTITUTE 

Certification of Financial Statements 2014 

The accompanying financial statements of Pilbara Institute have been prepared in 
compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper 
accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2014 and the financial position as at 31 December 2014. 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

Nicole Roocke 5 March 2015 

Chairperson, Governing Council 

Pilbara Institute 

Marlene Boundy 

Managing Director  5 March 2015 

Member, Governing Council 

Pilbara Institute 

Esnart Nyemba 5 March 2015 

Chief Finance Officer 

Pilbara Institute 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2014 2013
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Notes $ $
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 6 31,559,560    33,929,541        
Supplies and services 7 7,813,288      8,784,589          
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 3,509,793      3,582,305          
Cost of sales 13 306 10,282               
Other expenses 9 2,627,949      2,090,262          
Total cost of services 45,510,896    48,396,979        

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 10 2,771,983      2,243,533          
Student fees and charges 11 1,788,728      1,371,866          
Ancillary trading 12 8,927             5,083 
Sales 13 29,427           49,456               
Interest revenue 14 509,987         502,622             
Other revenue 15 1,145,808      2,065,716          
Total revenue 6,254,860      6,238,276          

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 16 545 8,105 
Total gains 545 8,105 

Total income other than income from State Government 6,255,406      6,246,381          

NET COST OF SERVICES 39,255,490    42,150,598        

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 17
Service appropriation 33,613,149    37,097,691        
Other Income from State Government 1,932,667      572,694             
Services received free of charge 1,121,990      974,096             
Total income from State Government 36,667,806    38,644,481        

(2,587,684)     (3,506,118)         

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 29 (12,002,967)   (6,918,894)         
Total other comprehensive income (12,002,967) (6,918,894) 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD (14,590,650)   (10,425,012)       

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Pilbara Institute

DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD
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Pilbara Institute
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 2013 2012

Notes $ $ $
ASSETS
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 30 2,114,841 3,181,333          11,200,833     
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 18 , 30 4,028,266 2,643,605          5,080,058       
Inventories 19 - 5,402 18,465            
Receivables 20 690,478 2,254,154          3,198,698       
Other current assets 21 6,921,198 6,501,309          488,344          
Total Current Assets 13,754,782 14,585,803        19,986,397     

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment ** 22 117,696,671 125,727,222      136,672,820   
Intangible assets 24 66,867 60,896 26,178            
Total Non-Current Assets 117,763,538 125,788,118      136,698,998   

TOTAL ASSETS 131,518,320 140,373,921      156,685,395   

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 26 1,261,599 1,607,665          3,234,191       
Provisions 27 2,874,959 2,760,109          3,305,081       
Other current liabilities 28 2,234,605 2,253,911          1,176,635       
Total Current Liabilities 6,371,163        6,621,685          7,715,908       

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 27 538,676 726,853             829,068          
Total Non-Current Liabilities 538,676 726,853             829,068          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,909,839 7,348,538          8,544,976       

NET ASSETS 124,608,481 133,025,383      ` 148,140,419   

EQUITY 29
Contributed equity 31,406,128 25,232,380        29,922,404     
Reserves ** 85,255,318 97,875,136        104,794,030   
Accumulated surplus 7,947,035 9,917,867          13,423,985     

TOTAL  EQUITY 124,608,481 133,025,383      148,140,419   

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

** During the 2014 revaluation of Land and Buildings, Landgate advised that the government had disposed of a 
piece of vacant land at the Newman campus in April 2012. This parcel of land was included in the fair value of land 
in 2012 and 2013. The financial statements have been corrected for this error and comparatives were restated 
accordingly. As required by  AASB 101.40A a third statement of financial position (2012 comparative) showing the 
adjusted balances has been included. See also note 22 'Property, plant and equipment',  note 29 'Equity' and note 
5 'Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors'.
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Pilbara Institute
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 2013

Notes  $  $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation - Department of Training and Workforce Develo 33,583,923    38,144,134     
Other Income from State Government 1,932,667      572,693          
Cash Distributed to State Government (322,124)        - 
Net cash provided by State Government 35,194,466    38,716,827     

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (31,725,623)   (35,608,233)    
Supplies and services (6,727,656)     (8,457,481)      
GST payments on purchases (972,673)        (593,697)         
Other payments (2,607,505)     (1,901,592)      

Receipts
Fee for service 3,812,230      2,282,293       
Student fees and charges  1,810,988      1,464,285       
Ancillary trading 8,927             5,083              
Interest received 463,208         517,399          
GST receipts on sales 342,535         242,497          
GST receipts from taxation authority 375,974         279,387          
Other receipts 1,717,118      2,869,517       
Net cash used in operating activities 30 (33,502,475)   (38,900,541)    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (946,078)        (4,292,762)      
Purchase of cash investments (428,289)        (6,000,000)      
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 545 20,522            
Net cash used in investing activities (1,373,821)     (10,272,239)    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 318,169         (10,455,953)    

Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of period 5,824,938      16,280,891     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 
PERIOD

30
6,143,107      5,824,938       

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pilbara Institute
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Accumulated
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 Contributed Equity Reserves Surplus Total Equity

Notes $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 January 2013 29 31,482,404 105,234,030 13,423,985 150,140,419  
  Correction of prior period errors  (1) (1,560,000) (440,000)  -  (2,000,000) 
Restated balance at 1 January 2012 29,922,404 104,794,030 13,423,985 148,140,419  
Restated Balance at 1 January 2013 29,922,404 104,794,030 13,423,985 148,140,419  
 Deficit - -        (3,506,118)  (3,506,118) 

  Other comprehensive income - (6,918,894)  -  (6,918,894) 
Total comprehensive income for the period - (6,918,894)  (3,506,118)  (10,425,012) 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners :
 Capital appropriations - -  -  - 
 Other contributions by owners 3,932,777 -  -  3,932,777  
 Distribution to owners (8,622,801) -  -  (8,622,801) 

Total (4,690,024) -  -  (4,690,024) 

Balance at 31 December 2013 25,232,380 97,875,136 9,917,867 133,025,383  

Balance at 1 January 2014 25,232,380 97,875,136 9,917,867 133,025,383  
Transfer from Revaluation Reserve (a) (616,851)  616,851      - 
 Deficit - -        (2,587,684)  (2,587,684)   

  Other comprehensive income - (12,002,967)  -  (12,002,967) 
Total comprehensive income for the period - (12,619,818)  (1,970,833)  (14,590,650) 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:
 Other contributions by owners 6,542,102 -  -  6,542,102  

  Distribution to owners (368,353) -  -  (368,353) 
Total 6,173,749 -  -  6,173,749  
Balance at 31 December 2014 31,406,128 85,255,318 7,947,035 124,608,481  

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

(1) Correction of prior and current period errors
During the 2014 revaluation of Land and Buildings, Landgate advised that the government had disposed of a piece of vacant land at the Newman 
campus in April 2012. This parcel of land was included in the fair value of land in 2012 and 2013. The financial statements have been corrected for 
this error and comparatives were restated accordingly. As required by  AASB 101.40A a third statement of financial position (2012 comparative) 
showing the adjusted balances has been included. See also note 22 'Property, plant and equipment',  note 29 'Equity' and note 5 'Disclosure of 
changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors'.

(a) Transfer from Revaluation Reserve
Relates to the transfer of asset revaluation surpluses for assets no longer held by the Institute which were previously measured at fair value.
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PILBARA INSTITUTE  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

1. Australian Accounting Standards
(a) General 
The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 
have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The 
term 'Australian Accounting Standards' includes Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Institute has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian 
Accounting Standards from their operative dates. 

(b) Early adoption of standards 
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by Treasurer's Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of 
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. There has 
been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been 
issued or amended (but not operative) by the Institute for the annual reporting 
period ended 31 December 2014. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these policies are 
consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

(a) General statement  
The Institute is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 
financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the 
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions. 
Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary 
application, disclosure, format and wording.  

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose 
legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and 
take precedence over the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial 
effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting 
financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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(b) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land and buildings 
which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless 
otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($). 

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ 
discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the 
Institute’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on 
amounts recognised in the financial statements.  

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions 
made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year. 

Going Concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which 
assumes that the Institute will be able to generate sufficient positive cash 
flows to meet its financial obligations and realise its assets and extinguish its 
liabilities in the normal course of business  

(c)  Reporting entity 
The reporting entity comprises the Institute. 

(d) Contributed equity 
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned 
Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, 
other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be 
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions  by owners (at the 
time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity 
contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions 
by owners by TI 955 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public 
Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a 
restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by 
owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. See 
note 29 'Equity'. 
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(e) Income 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration 
received or receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned 
from student fees and charges, fee for service, ancillary services, trading 
activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets 
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser 
and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
transaction. 

Interest 
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the 
assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are 
recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised 
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be 
purchased if not donated. 

State funds 
The funds received from the Department of Training and Workforce 
Development in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery 
Performance Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed under ‘Income 
from State Government'. They are the result of training successfully tendered 
for under competitive tendering arrangements. This revenue is recognised at 
nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets the terms of the 
Agreement. See note 17 'Income from State Government'. 

Gains 
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These 
include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some 
revaluations of non-current assets. 
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(f) Property, plant and equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised 
as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their 
useful lives. Where applicable in accordance with TI 1101, the capitalisation 
threshold has been applied to the aggregate value of a group or network of 
assets where the cost of individual item may be below the threshold but 
collectively the cost of the items in the group or network exceeds the 
threshold. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are 
immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are 
significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for 
the measurement of land and buildings and historical cost for all other 
property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings 
is determined on the basis of current market values determined by reference 
to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to 
recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated 
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to 
the revalued amount.  

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is 
determined on the basis of existing use.  This normally applies where 
buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for 
existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the 
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the 
depreciated replacement cost.  

Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 
replacement cost basis, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against 
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the 
revalued amount.  
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Subsequent measurement (continued) 
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market 
evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or 
market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western 
Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised 
annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the 
asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are 
made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in 
determining estimated economic life. 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not 
provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use 
assets. Refer to note 22 'Property, plant and equipment' and note 23 ‘Fair 
Value Measurement’ for further information on revaluations. 

Derecognition 
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, 
any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements 
on the revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 22 ‘Property, 
plant and equipment’. 

Depreciation 
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which 
are reviewed annually. 

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 
Buildings   40 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers  4 to 23 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment 4 to 28 years 
Computer equipment and communication network (a) 1 to 15 years 
Marine craft 6 to 15 years 

 (a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Land is not depreciated.  
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(g) Intangible assets 
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally 
generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are capitalised. The cost 
of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs 
incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no 
cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to 
be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the 
period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed 
annually) on the straight line basis.  All intangible assets controlled by the 
Institute have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful 
lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Licences  up to 10 years 
Software (a) 3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 

Licences 
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Computer software 
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as 
property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not an integral part of the 
related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset.  Software costing less 
than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

(h) Impairment of assets 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any 
indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  Where there is 
an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment 
loss is recognised.   Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where 
a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is 
recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income.  
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(h) Impairment of assets (continued) 
As the Institute is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been 
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or 
where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets 
is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic 
benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.  

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of 
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value 
have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by 
reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by 
reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of 
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost 
are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  

See note 25 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and 
testing.  See note 2(n) 'Receivables' and note 20 'Receivables' for impairment 
of receivables. 

(i) Leases 
The Institute has entered into operating lease arrangements for motor 
vehicles and buildings. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis 
over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the 
leased assets. See note 31 “Commitments”. 

(j) Financial instruments 
In addition to cash at bank, the Institute has two categories of financial 
instruments: 

• Receivables;
• Other financial assets; and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial assets 
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables

Financial liabilities 
• Payables
• DPA Clawback
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(j) Financial instruments (continued) 
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value 
which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost 
or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent 
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 
(k) Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include restricted cash and cash equivalents. These are comprised of cash on 
hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of six months or less that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(l) Accrued salaries 
Accrued salaries (see note 26 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff 
but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period for 
that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  
Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The 
Institute considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to 
its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 18 ‘Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents’) consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account 
over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay 
in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No 
interest is received on this account. 

(m) Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs 
are assigned by the method most appropriate to each particular class of 
inventory, with the majority being measured on a first in first out basis. 

See note 19 'Inventories'. 

(n) Receivables 
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for 
any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables 
is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as 
uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for 
uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 
evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying 
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amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 
See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’. 
(o) Payables 
Payables are recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future 
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days. 
See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 26 'Payables'. 

(p) Provisions 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised 
where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 27 
‘Provisions’.  

(i) Provisions - employee benefits 
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period. 

Annual leave 
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period and is therefore considered to be ‘other long-
term employee benefits’. The annual leave liability is recognised and 
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement.  

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience 
of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the 
Institute does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 

Long service leave 
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period and is therefore recognised and 
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement. 
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(p) Provisions - Long service leave (continued) 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience 
of employee departures and periods of service.  The expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current 
liabilities as the Institute does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave 
provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Institute has 
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the 
employee has completed the requisite years of service. 

Deferred Leave 
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who 
have entered into an agreement to self-fund an additional twelve months 
leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises the value 
of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is 
measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported 
as a current provision as employees can leave the scheme at their 
discretion at any time. 

Superannuation 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other 
funds administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western 
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for 
membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary 
according to commencement and implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit 
pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme 
closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not 
members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-
contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  

Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became 
members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, 
existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been 
able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider.  
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(p) Provisions - Superannuation (continued) 
The Institute makes contributions to GESB or other funds providers on 
behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to 
these accumulation schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for 
superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of 
the Pension Scheme or GSS.  

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and 
whole-of-government reporting.  However, it is a defined contribution plan 
for Institute purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined 
contributions) made by the Institute to GESB extinguishes the Institute’s 
obligations to the related superannuation liability. 

The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The 
liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS 
transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the Pension 
Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are 
funded by concurrent contributions made by the Institute to the GESB.  

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme 
and GSS, and is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer's share. 
See also note 2(q) 'Superannuation expense'. 

(ii) Provisions - other 

Employment on-costs 
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not 
employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and 
expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.   

Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not 
included as part of the Institute's 'Employee benefits expense’. The related 
liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'. (See note 9 'Other 
expenses' and note 27 'Provisions'.) 

(q) Superannuation expense 
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), 
the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS) and other superannuation funds.  
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(r) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Institute 
would otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair 
value of the assets or services where they can be reliably measured. A 
corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of 
assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are 
separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. 

(s) Comparative figures 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable 
with the figures presented in the current financial year. 

3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The Institute 
evaluates these judgements regularly. 

Operating Lease Commitments 
The Institute has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the 
lessor retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the property. Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an 
operating lease.  

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year. 

Long Service Leave 
Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the Institute’s long 
service leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, 
employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these 
estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the 
long service leave provision. 

Impairment of Receivables 
The allowance for impairment of receivables is estimated based on 
assessment of the collectability of individual debts. Generally debts less 
than 120 days overdue are not considered to be impaired. 
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Invalid Enrolment and under delivery of the Delivery & Performance 
Agreement  
Included in Current Liabilities is a value refundable to the Department of 
Training and Workforce Development for under delivery in the Institute’s 
training programs. An estimate has been made based on student 
information held at the year end with final results determined by the 
Department the following year. 

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction
of Prior Period Errors

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 
The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 
that impacted on the Institute. 

Int 21 Levies 

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a 
liability to pay a government levy imposed should be 
recognised.  There is no financial impact for the Institute at 
reporting date. 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number 
of changes to accounting treatments. 
(a) The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact 

for the Institute as it does not impact accounting for 
related bodies and the Institute has no interests in other 
entities. 

AASB 11 This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 
Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new principles for 
determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are 
more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties 
to the arrangement. 
(b) There is no financial impact for the Institute as the new 

standard continues to require the recognition of the 
Institute’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the 
unincorporated joint operation. 

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure 
requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and 
AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. There is no financial 
impact. 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction
of Prior Period Errors (continued) 

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements removing the 
consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst 
retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the 
preparation of separate financial statements.  There is no 
financial impact. 

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in 
Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the 
accounting treatments of changed ownership interest. 
(c) The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact 

for the Institute as it does not hold investments in 
associates and joint ventures. 

AASB 1031 Materiality 

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), 
removing Australian guidance on materiality not available in 
IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian 
pronouncements.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 
2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 
139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17] 

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising 
from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate 
Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures.  There is no financial impact for the 
Institute. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to 
address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the 
offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently 
has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross 
settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net 
settlement.  There is no financial impact. 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction
of Prior Period Errors (continued) 

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures 
for Non-Financial Assets.  

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  
There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of 
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139] 

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in 
circumstances where a derivative, which has been designated 
as a hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a 
central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations.  
The Institute does not routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, 
therefore there is no financial impact. 

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control 
and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049]. 

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant 
guidance in determining whether a not-for-profit entity controls 
another entity when financial returns are not a key attribute of 
the investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial 
impact in its own right, rather the impact results from the 
adoption of the amended AASB 10. 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual 
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments. 

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards 
arising from the deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other 
Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 
(Part B).  Part B of the Standard has no financial impact. 

Voluntary changes in accounting policy 
No voluntary changes in accounting policy have been made. 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by TI 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Other Pronouncements'. Consequently, the Institute has not 
applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have 
been issued that may impact the Institute. Where applicable, the Institute 
plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application 
date.
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors (continued)
Operative for 

reporting periods 
beginning on / 

after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being 
amended by AASB 2012 6, AASB 2013 9, and, AASB 2014 1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards.  The Authority has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial 
statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. The Authority 
will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations of major 
variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2014 

AASB 2009-
11 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12] 

(d) The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after 
being amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards. 

1 Jan 2018 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors (continued)

Operative for 
reporting 
periods 

beginning on / 
after 

AASB 
2010-7 

Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 
118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 
127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards 
and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and 
AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018.  The Authority has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 
2013-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Conceptual Framework, Materiality and 
Financial Instruments. 

1 Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 
(Part C).  The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 
1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.  The Authority has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of AASB 9. 

1 Jan 2017 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors (continued)
Operative for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning on / 
after 

AASB 
2014-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
Part A changes consist primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and have no 
financial impact for the Authority. 
Part B has no financial impact as the Authority contributes to schemes that are either 
defined contribution plans, or deemed to be defined contribution plans. 
Part C has no financial impact as the Standard removes references to AASB 1031 
Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards. 
Part D has no financial impact as the Authority is not required to apply AASB 14 
Regulatory Deferral Accounts. 
Part E makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other 
Standards.  It has not yet been assessed by the Authority to determine the application or 
potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jul 2014 

     1 Jul 2014 

1 Jul 2014 

1 Jan 2016 

1 Jan 2015 
1 Jan 2018 

AASB 
2014-3 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 
in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 

The Authority establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not routinely 
acquire interests in Joint Operations.  Therefore, there is no financial impact on application 
of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors (continued)

Operative for 
reporting 
periods 

beginning on / 
after 

AASB 
2014-4 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 
1 The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority as 

depreciation and amortisation is not determined by reference to revenue generation, 
but by reference to consumption of future economic benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 

Changes in Accounting Estimates 
There have been no changes in accounting estimates. 

Correction of Prior Period Errors 
During the 2014 revaluation of Land and Buildings, Landgate advised that the government had disposed of a piece of vacant land 
at the Newman campus in April 2012. This parcel of land was included in the fair value of land in 2012 and 2013. The financial 
statements have been corrected for this error and comparatives were restated accordingly. As required by AASB 101.40A a third 
statement of financial position (2012 comparative) showing the adjusted balances has been included. See also note 22 'Property, 
plant and equipment' and note 29 'Equity'. 

The following table shows the restatement of the Institute’s Financial Statements as a result of the correction of the error: 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors (continued)

Actual 
$ 

Correction 
$ 

Revised 
$ 

31 December 2013 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXTRACT) 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Changes in asset revaluation surplus (6,518,894) (400,000) (6,918,894) 
Total Other Comprehensive Income (6,518,894) (400,000) (6,918,894) 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD (10,025,012) (400,000) (10,425,012) 

31 December 2013 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (EXTRACT) 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 128,127,222 (2,400,000) 125,727,222 
Total Non-Current Assets 128,188,118 (2,400,000) 125,788,118 
Total Assets 142,773,921 (2,400,000) 140,373,921 
Net Assets 135,425,383 (2,400,000) 133,025,383 
Equity 
Contributed Equity 26,792,380 (1,560,000) 25,232,380 
Reserves 98,715,136 (840,000) 97,875,136 
Total Equity 135,425,383 (2,400,000) 133,025,383 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors (continued)
Actual 

$ 
Correction 

$ 
Revised 

$ 
31 December 2012 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (EXTRACT) 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 138,672,820 (2,000,000) 136,672,820 
Total Non-Current Assets 138,698,998 (2,000,000) 136,698,998 
Total Assets 158,685,395 (2,000,000) 156,685,395 
Net Assets 150,140,420 (2,000,000) 148,140,420 
Equity 
Contributed Equity 31,482,404 (1,560,000) 29,922,404 
Reserves 105,234,030 (440,000) 104,794,030 
Total Equity 150,140,420 (2,000,000) 148,140,420 
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2014 2013
$ $

6 Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a) 29,542,572     31,305,833 
Voluntary Severence Scheme 36,990            572,693 
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 1,979,998       2,051,015 

31,559,560     33,929,541 

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, and Gold State and Government Employees Superannuation Board and other eligible funds.
Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers' compensation insurance, are included at note 9 'Other expenses'. 
Employment on-costs liability is included at note 27 'Provisions'.

7 Supplies and services
Consumables and minor equipment 706,772          885,135 
Communication expenses 181,122          185,100 
Utilities expenses 1,647,958       1,392,000 
Consultancies and contracted services (a) 2,531,976       3,433,430 
Minor works 857,831          1,093,528 
Repairs and maintenance 178,972          30,491 
Operating lease and hire charges 431,073          493,950 
Travel and passenger transport 442,739          438,886 
Advertising and public relations 78,451            87,123 
PD staff activites  189,805          174,982 
Other 566,589          569,964 

7,813,288       8,784,589 

(a) (i) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements including 
superannuation contribution component.
     (ii) Includes Government Regional Officers Housing rent contributions recouped from staff against the Government Regional Officers 
Housing rental expense.

(a) Audit Fees which were previously disclosed as part of Consultancies and Contracted Services, have been reclassified as other expenses. 
Refer to note 9 'Other expenses'. 2013 comparatives have been adjusted to match 2014 disclosure.
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2014 2013
$ $

8 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Buildings 2,503,678          2,667,174        
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 255,603             276,173           
Plant, furniture and general equipment 461,772             437,838           
Computer Equipment and communication network 241,570             184,546           
Marine craft 2,393 2,393               
Total depreciation 3,465,016          3,568,124        
Amortisation
Software 44,777               14,181             
Total amortisation 44,777               14,181             
Total depreciation and amortisation 3,509,793          3,582,305        

9 Other expenses
Building maintenance 228,660             419,950           
Doubtful debts expense 3,020 19,776             
Employment on-costs (a) 2,279,065          1,517,978        
Donations 3,055 - 
Student prizes and awards 9,941 10,756             
Audit Fees (b) 68,655               104,983           
Losses and write-offs 4,263 2,081               
Other (c ) 31,290               14,738             

2,627,949          2,090,262        
(a) Employment on-costs - Includes workers' compensation insurance and payroll tax.  The on-costs liability associated with the recognition of 
annual and long service leave liability is included at note 27 'Provisions'.  Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave 
are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

(c)  Includes: refunds of unspent funds for specific projects and Occupational Safety and Health costs.

(b)  Audit Fees which were previously disclosed as part of Consultancies and Contracted Services, have been reclassified as other expenses. 
Refer to note 7 'Supplies and Services'. 2013 comparatives have been adjusted to match 2014 disclosure.

66Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report



Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

10 Fee for service
Fee for service - general 2,517,195 2,147,073    
Fee for service - Department of Training and Workforce Development 170,617 -               
Fee for service - Government (other than Department of Training and Workforce Development) 12,000 6,277           
International division fees 72,171 90,183         

2,771,983 2,243,533    

11 Student fees and charges
Tuition fees 1,251,229 896,206       
Resource fees 382,295 373,450       
Other Institute fees 67,693 102,210       
Student Fees - RPL Fees & RPL Reversal 87,511 -               

1,788,728 1,371,866    

12 Ancillary trading
Live works (not a trading activity) 8,927 5,083           

8,927 5,083           

13 Trading profit/(loss)
(a) Bookshop:
Sales 918 12,013         
  Cost of sales:
  Opening inventory (5,402) (18,465)        
  Purchases - -               
Adjustments to inventory 833 700              

(4,569) (17,765)        
  Inventory write off 4,263 2,081           
  Closing inventory - 5,402           
Cost of goods sold (306) (10,282)        
Trading profit - Bookshop 612 1,731           
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2014 2013
$ $

13 Trading profit/(loss) (continued)
(b) Other trading
Sales - Textbooks 28,510          33,913          
Sales - Video Conferencing and other goods and services - 3,530            
Trading profit - Other trading 28,510          37,443          

Total Sales 29,427          49,456          
See note 2(m) 'Inventories' and note 19 'Inventories'.

14 Interest revenue
Interest revenue (Commonwealth Bank) 291,554        428,309        
Interest revenue (Bankwest) 218,433        17,030          
Interest revenue (Westpac) - 57,283          

509,987        502,622        
2013 disclosure has been restated to show correct split of interest received from each Financial Institution.

15 Other revenue
Chevron Gorgon Project - Indigenous Trades Training - 54,398          
Donations revenue - 30,955          
Expense recoveries 450 2,383            
Fuel Tax credits 265 2,083            
Insurance recovery - 439 
Library 12,760          13,828          
Local Government Grants and Contributions (Theatre and Community Libraries) 105,000        105,000        
Pindan College Recoup from DTWD - 51,667          
Polytechnic West Adult Migrant English Program 24,830          5,085            
Pundulmurra Village (Facilities Income) 107,883        340,176        
Rental and facilities fees 615,097        838,621        
Shire of Roebourne & Pilbara Iron Early Learning Scholarship Program 14,419          56,790          
Subtotal 880,704        1,501,425     
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2014 2013
$ $

15 Other revenue (continued)

Vending Machine 1,811              3,337            
Other Grants DTWD - Capital and Maintenance upgrades 247,464          87,000          
Woodside Sponsorship - Karratha Electrical & Instrumentation Centre - 473,332        
Govt Vehicle Scheme Recoup 8,337              10,645          
Prior Year income 1,299              (23,052)         
Other miscellaneous revenue 6,193              13,029          

1,145,808       2,065,716     

16 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers - 5,836            
Plant, furniture and general equipment 200 14,687          
Computers and communication network 345 - 
Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 545 20,523          

Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed
Plant, furniture and general equipment - (12,418)         
Total cost of disposal of non-current assets - (12,418)         

Net gain 545 8,105            

See note 22 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.
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2014 2013
$ $

17 Income from State Government

Appropriation received during the year:

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 33,607,965      37,094,320 
Other recurrent funds 5,184 3,371 
Total State funds 33,613,149      37,097,691 

Other Income from State Government
 Voluntary Severence Scheme recoup from DTWD 102,667           572,694 
 Capital grant - Walkington Theatre and Pundulmurra Houses Demolition Funding 1,830,000        - 

Total other income from State Government 1,932,667        572,694 

Services received free of charge from other State government agencies during
the financial period :

Department of Training and Workforce Development
- Corporate systems support 348,927           416,011 
- Human resources, and industrial relations support 27,819             19,437 
- Other 659,070           382,999 

1,035,816        818,447 
Other Government - Department of Education 86,174             155,649 

1,121,990        974,096 

Total income from State Government 36,667,806      38,644,481 

Service appropriation  (a) (State funds received from Department of Training and Workforce 
Development):

(a)  Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.
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2014 2013
$ $

18 Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Current

253,297           853,585       
1,947,659        200,000       

362,151           590,020       

341,458           1,000,000    

930,000           - 
193,701           - 

Total Restricted Cash and cash equivalents 4,028,266        2,643,605    

19 Inventories
Current
Inventories held for resale:

Bookshop (at cost) - 5,402           
Less: Provision for obsolete stock - - 

Total - 5,402           

See also note 2(m) 'Inventories' and note 13 'Trading profit/(loss)'.

    Electrical Instrumentation Centre - Woodside Sponsorship Funding (Commonwealth Bank BOS 
    Account)
    Electrical Instrumentation Centre - Woodside Sponsorship Funding (Commonwealth Bank 5 
   month fixed term deposit)
    VET Fee Help Funding (Commonwealth Bank Operating Account)

    Accrued salaries suspense account (27th Pay provision) (Commonwealth Bank Operating 
    Account)
    Walkington Theatre Demolition Funding (Commonwealth Bank Operating Account)
    Pundulmurra Education Investment Funding (Commonwealth Bank BOS Account)

71Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report



Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

20 Receivables

Current
Receivables - trade 559,391 1,078,973 
Receivables - Woodside Sponsorship funding - 520,665 
Receivables - students 21,070 33,930 
Accrued revenue 111,046 977,339 
Allowance for impairment of receivables (40,549)           (408,600)      
GST receivable 39,520 51,847 
Total  receivables 690,478 2,254,154 

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of  period 408,600 405,678 
Doubtful debts expense 3,020 19,777 
Amount written off during the period (372,036)         (17,679)        
Impariment losses reversed during the period 965 824 
Balance at end of  period 40,549 408,600 
The Institute does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.
See also note 2(n) 'Receivables' and note 35 'Financial instruments'. 

21 Other assets
Current
Prepayments 453,925 443,997 
Cash Investments (a) 6,428,289 6,000,000 
Other current assets (b) 38,984 57,312 
Total current 6,921,198 6,501,309 
(a) Cash Investments consist of:

        6,000,000      6,000,000 

428,289 - 
(b) Other current assets consist of Apprentice travel funding to be received from Apprenticeship Australia.

i) Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit (2013 comparatives have been restated to align with 2014
disclosure, in 2013 investment was disclosed as part of cash and cash equivalents, refer note 30 'Notes 
to the Statement of Cash Flows')
ii) Pundulmurra Village Income (Commonwealth Bank 7 month fixed term deposit) (Health & Allied
Services Training Centre project contribution)
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2014 2013
$ $

22 Property, plant and equipment
Land
At fair value (a) 19,773,000      22,973,000     

19,773,000      22,973,000     
Buildings
At fair value (a) 94,871,426      99,574,926     
Accumulated depreciation (16,986)            (23,776)           

94,854,440      99,551,150     
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 
At cost 1,910,984        1,857,634       
Accumulated depreciation (1,035,527)       (779,924)         

875,457           1,077,710       
Plant,  furniture and general equipment
At cost 4,012,792        3,664,329       
Accumulated depreciation (2,434,072)       (1,955,524)      

1,578,720        1,708,805       
Computer equipment and communication network
At cost 1,783,123        1,359,163       
Accumulated depreciation (1,172,855)       (949,785)         

610,268           409,378          
Marine craft
At cost 33,500             33,500            
Accumulated depreciation (28,714)            (26,321)           

4,786               7,179              

Carrying amount at end of period 117,696,671    125,727,222   
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22 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

 Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 23.

Land Buildings

Motor 
vehicles, 

caravans and 
trailers 

 Plant,  
furniture and 

general 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment and 
communication 

network 
Marine 

craft Total
2014 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at start of year 22,973,000  99,551,150    1,077,710    1,708,805   409,378            7,179     125,727,222 
Additions - 813,332         53,350         79,536        442,460            -         1,388,678 
Transfers - 6,048,754      - - - -         6,048,754 
Other Disposals - - - (7,000) (18,500) -         (25,500) 
Reclassifications (a) - (275,926)        - 275,926      - -         - 
Revaluation increments/(decrements) (3,200,000)   (8,802,967)     - - - -         (12,002,967) 
Depreciation Write Back on Disposal - - - 7,000          18,500              -         25,500 
Depreciation on Reclassifications - 23,775           - (23,775) - -         - 
Depreciation - (2,503,678)     (255,603)      (461,772)    (241,570) (2,393)    (3,465,016) 
Carrying amount at end of period 19,773,000  94,854,440    875,457       1,578,720   610,268            4,786     117,696,671 

(a) Reclassifications consist of a modified sea container used as a mobile classroom and 2 other modified containers used as training equipment 
for working in confined spaces which had been previously disclosed as part of buildings and have now been reclassified to Plant, furniture and 
general equipment.

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2014 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).   The valuations 
were performed during the year ended 31 December 2014 and recognised at 31 December 2014. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was 
determined by reference to market values for land: $ 1,800,000 (2013: $ 7,400,000) and buildings: $ 700,000 (2013: $8,000,000). For the remaining 
balance,  fair value of buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of 
comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). See note 2(f) 'Property, plant and equipment'.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting  period are set out in the table 
below.

During the 2014 revaluation of Land and Buildings, Landgate advised that the government had disposed of a piece of vacant land at the Newman 
campus in April 2012. This parcel of land was included in the fair value of land in 2012 and 2013. The financial statements have been corrected for 
this error and comparatives were restated accordingly. As required by  AASB 101.40A a third statement of financial position (2012 comparative) 
showing the adjusted balances has been included. See also note 22 'Property, plant and equipment',  note 29 'Equity' and note 5 'Disclosure of 
changes in accounting policy, estimates and correction of Prior Period Errors'.
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22 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land Buildings

Buildings 
under

construction

Motor 
vehicles, 
caravans 

and trailers 

 Plant, 
furniture 

and general 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment, 
communica

tion 
network 

Marine 
craft Total

2013 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at start of year 27,593,000  100,552,696  7,416,543  757,843 1,908,019  435,148 9,571  138,672,820  
Additions -        10,813,323  -  596,040 251,042  158,776 - 11,819,182  
Transfers (a) (3,400,000)  (1,485,000) (7,416,543)  -  -  -  - (12,301,543) 
Other Disposals -  - -  (47,000)  (93,493)  (63,448)     (7,500) (211,441)      
Revaluation increments/(decrements) 780,000  (7,698,894) -  -  -  -            -      (6,918,894)   
Depreciation Write Back on Disposal -  - -  47,000 81,075  63,448 7,500  199,023  

Depreciation Write Back on Transfers -  36,199        -  -  -  -  - 36,199        
Depreciation -  (2,667,174) -  (276,173)  (437,838)    (184,546)   (2,392) (3,568,124) 

Carrying amount at end of  period 22,973,000  99,551,150  -  1,077,710  1,708,805  409,378 7,179  125,727,222  

(a) The Department of Lands is the only agency with the power to sell Crown land. The land is transferred to the Department of Lands for sale and 
the Authority accounts for the transfer as a distribution to owner.
College Court South Hedland land transferred to the Department of Housing (2013) - $3,400,000
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2014 2013
$ $

23 Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
 At end of 

period 
2014 $ $ $ $
Land (Note 22) - 1,800,000 17,973,000     19,773,000     
Buildings (Note 22) - 700,000 94,154,440     94,854,440     

- 2,500,000 112,127,440   114,627,440   

Assets measured at fair value : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
 At end of 

period 
2013 $ $ $ $

Land (Note 22) - 5,000,000 17,973,000     22,973,000     
Buildings (Note 22) - 8,000,000 91,491,878     99,491,878     

- 13,000,000 109,464,878   122,464,878   

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values
Level 2 fair values of Land and Buildings (accommodation units) are derived using the market approach.
Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings (accommodation units) in close proximity is used to determine price 
per square metre.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 2013 Level 2 Land disclosure has been adjusted land disposed of 
in 2012 - refer note 22 for further details.
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23 Fair value measurements (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
2014 Land Buildings

$ $
Fair Value at start of period 17,973,000 91,491,878        
Additions - 6,862,085          
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - (1,702,967)         
Reclassification to Plant, furniture and general equipment - (192,878)            
Depreciation Expense - (2,303,678)         
Fair Value at end of period 17,973,000 94,154,440        

2013 Land Buildings
$ $

Fair Value at start of period 21,293,000 92,056,069        
Additions - 10,813,323        
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 80,000 (7,437,840)         
Disposals (3,400,000) (1,485,000)         
Depreciation Expense - (2,454,674)         
Fair Value at end of period 17,973,000 91,491,878        
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23 Fair value measurements (continued).

Valuation processes

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Sales prices of appropriate land of low utility

These are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Selection of land with similar approximate utility

Fair value for land with low level utility (high restricted use) is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar 
approximate utility. Relevant comparators of land with similar approximate utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information 
Authority (Valuation Services).

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Fair value for existing use specialised building is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less 
accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed economic benefit, expired economic benefit or 
obsolescence of the asset. Determination of the current replacement cost of such assets held by the Institute is calculated by reference to 
gross project size specifications and the historical cost, adjusted by relevant indices.

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land that is unrestricted 
(low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land).

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Institute are derived and evaluated as follows:
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23 Fair value measurements (continued).

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements

Description  Fair value 
as at 31 
December 
2014

 Fair value 
as at 31 
December 
2013

Valuation 
technique(s)

Unobservable 
inputs

Range of 
unobservable inputs 
(probability – 
weighted average) 

Range of 
unobservable inputs 
(probability – 
weighted average)

Relationship of 
unobservable 
inputs to fair value

$ $ 2014 2013
Land 17,973,000   17,973,000 Market 

approach
Selection of land 
with similar 
approximate utility

$1 - $116 per m2
($45 per m2)

$1 - $116 per m2
($45 per m2)

Higher value of 
similar land 
increases estimated 
fair value.

Buildings    94,154,440    91,491,878 Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost

Consumed 
economic benefit/ 
obsolescence of 
asset

1.8% - 4.49% per year
(2.74% per year)

2% - 2.5% per year
(2.1% per year)

Greater 
consumption of 
economic benefit or 
increased 
obsolescence 
lowers fair value.

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Note 22.

Basis of Valuation
In the absence of market-based evidence due to the specialised nature of the assets, non-financial assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when 
they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific 
community service and the Institute's enabling legistation.
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2014 2013
$ $

24 Intangible assets
Computer software
At cost 492,639             441,891              
Accumulated amortisation (425,772)            (380,995) 

66,867               60,896                

Reconciliations

Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period 60,896 26,178 
Additions 50,748 48,899 
Amortisation expense (44,777)              (14,181) 
Carrying amount at end of period 66,867               60,896                

25 Impairment of assets

26 Payables

Current 
Trade payables - 23,369 
Accrued expenses 906,911             882,443              
Accrued salaries and related costs 349,047             696,006              
Paid parental leave payable 5,641 5,847 
Total current 1,261,599          1,607,665           

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or intangible assets at 31 December 2014. The Institute 
held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there 
were no intangible assets not yet available for use. All surplus assets as at 31 December 2014 have been written off.

See also note 2(o) 'Payables' and note 35  'Financial Instruments'.
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2014 2013
$ $

27 Provisions

Current
Employee benefits provision
  Annual leave (a) 942,841             1,114,052           
  Long service leave (b) 1,498,660          1,243,493           
  Superannuation 196,243             195,153              
  Deferred Salary Scheme ( c) 67,575 43,437 

2,705,319          2,596,135           
Other provisions
  Employment on-costs (d) 169,640             163,974              

169,640             163,974              
Total current 2,874,959          2,760,109           

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
  Long service leave (b) 464,473             619,437              
  Superannuation 41,717 63,652 

506,190             683,089              
Other provisions
  Employment on-costs (d) 32,486 43,764 

32,486 43,764 
Total non-current 538,676             726,853              
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2014 2013
$ $

27 Provisions (continued)

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 782,092        913,136 
       More than 12 months after  the end of the reporting period 160,749        200,916 

942,841        1,114,052 

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 430,854        365,828 
       More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 1,532,278     1,497,102 

1,963,132     1,862,930 

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 67,575          - 
       More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period - 43,437 

67,575          43,437 

Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.
Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period 207,738        240,319 
Additional provisions recognised / (reversed) (5,612)           (32,581) 
Carrying amount at end of period 202,126        207,738 

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

(c) Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 
months after the end of the reporting period. Actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers' 
compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding 
of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 9 'Other expenses'.
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2014 2013
$ $

28 Other liabilities
Current 
Income received in advance (a) 50,723 81,379         
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) (b) 2,123,119 2,152,346    
VET Fee Help advances 40,204 - 
Money/deposits held in trust 16,752 16,752         
Other 3,807 3,434           
Total current 2,234,605 2,253,911    
(a) Income received in advance comprises:

Other Government (Commonwealth/Local) 40,204 - 
Student fees and charges 50,723 81,379         

90,927 81,379         

2,123,119 2,152,346    

29 Equity

Contributed equity
Balance at start of period 25,232,380 29,922,404  
Other contributions by owners
Royalties for Regions Fund - Regional Infrastructure and Headworks Account 493,347 158,777       
Transfer of net assets from other agencies (a) 6,048,754 3,774,000    
Total contributions by owners 6,542,101 3,932,777    
Distributions to owners (b)
Transfer of net assets to other agencies (b) (8,622,801)   
Woodside contribution to the Electrical Instrumentation Centre  project recouped by DTWD (368,353) 
Total distributions to owners (368,353) (8,622,801)   
Balance at end of period 31,406,128 25,232,380  

(b) Department of Training and Workforce Development -  DPA Clawback and Invalid Enrolments 

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Institute on behalf of the community. Equity represents the 
residual interest in the net assets of the Institute. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the 
revaluation of non-current assets.
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2014 2013
$ $

29 Equity (continued)

(a) Transfer of net assets from other agencies 
      Transfer of Block 1400 - Student Services from Department of Education 3,774,000 
      Transfer of 14 Units on Somerset Crescent (previously College Court) from Department 6,048,754      

(b) Distribution to owners

      Transfer of Block 800 (excluding room 206) to Department of Education (1,759,000)      
      Transfer of College Court Land South Hedland to Department of Housing (6,863,801)      
      Transfer of Newman Land to Department of Lands for disposal to Warlparringu (Pty) Ltd

Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of period 97,875,136    104,794,030 
Transfer to accumulated surplus / (deficit) (a) (616,851)        
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
 Land (3,200,000) 780,000          
 Buildings (8,802,967) (7,698,894)      
Change in asset revaluation surplus (12,619,818) (6,918,894)      

Other reserves
Balance at start of period - 191,606 
Other adjustments during the year - (191,606)         
Other reserves - - 
Balance at end of period 85,255,318    97,875,136 

TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to Government to be accounted for as distribution to owners in 
accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038.

During the 2014 revaluation of Land and Buildings, Landgate advised that the government had disposed of a piece of vacant 
land at the Newman campus in April 2012. This parcel of land was included in the fair value of land in 2012 and 2013. The 
financial statements have been corrected for this error and comparatives were restated accordingly. As required by  AASB 
101.40A a third statement of financial position (2012 comparative) showing the adjusted balances has been included. See also 
note 22 'Property, plant and equipment',  note 29 'Equity' and note 5 'Disclosure of changes in accounting policy, estimates and 
correction of Prior Period Errors'.
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2014 2013
$ $

29 Equity (continued)

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
Balance at start of period 9,917,867 13,423,985    
Transfer from reserves (a) 616,851 - 
Result for the period (2,587,684)     (3,506,118)     
Balance at end of period 7,947,035 9,917,867      

Total Equity at end of period 124,608,481 133,025,383  

30 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of cash

Cash on hand 3,960 3,960             
Cash at bank 2,110,881 2,861,304      
Short term deposits (a) - 316,069         
Cash and Cash equivalents 2,114,841 3,181,333      
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 18 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') 4,028,266 2,643,605      
Cash at the end of the financial year 6,143,107 5,824,938      

(a) Short term deposits consist of:
i) Commonwealth Bank 3 month fixed term deposit at a rate of 3.25% p.a. payable on maturity - 316,069         

Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial 
Position as follows:

ii) Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit which was erroneously disclosed as part of cash and cash equivalents in 2013 has now been restated
and disclosed correctly, refer note 21 'Other assets'.

(a) Transfer from Revaluation Reserve
Relates to the transfer of asset revaluation surpluses for assets no longer held by the Institute which were previously measured at fair value.
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2014 2013
$ $

30 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows used in operating activities
Net cost of services 39,255,490     42,150,598    
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 'Depreciation and amortisation expense ) 3,509,793       3,582,305      
Doubtful debts expense (note 9 ‘Other expenses’) 3,020              19,776           
Resources received free of charge (note 17 ‘Income from State Government’) 1,121,990       974,096         

(545) (8,105)            
Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of money) (note 9 ‘Other expenses’) (366,807) (14,773)          
FBT expense and Fuel Tax Credits offset from GST refunds 254,164          71,813           
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a) 1,919,400       880,492         
Current inventories 1,139              10,982           
Prepayments (9,927) (17,471)          
Other current assets 18,327            4,506             
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables (a) (392,296) (1,626,526)     
Current provisions 114,850          (544,972)        
Other current liabilities 9,921              30,833           
Non-current provisions (188,177) (102,215)        
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) (254,165) (71,813)          
Change in GST in receivables/payables (c) 12,328            61,131           
Net cash used in operating activities (33,502,475)   (38,900,541)   

(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables

Net gain on sale of property, plant  and equipment (note 16 ‘Net gain on sale of non-current assets’)

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the 
sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 
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2014 2013
$ $

31 Commitments

The commitments below are inclusive of GST.

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Within 1 year 175,760             188,287 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 152,355             163,309 

328,115             351,596 

32 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities
The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the financial statements:

Contaminated sites

Contingent assets
As at the reporting date the Institute has no contingent assets.

Government asbestos guidelines state that any building or building product manufactured prior to 1987 should be treated as containing the 
asbestos product. Under this determination, the Institute deems that all of its sites would need to be reasonably suspected of containing 
asbestos. Sites that are confirmed as being suspected of containing asbestos include Roebourne, Pundulmurra and Onslow.

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

See also note 2 (i) 'Leases'.

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Institute is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of 
Environment and Regulation (DER). In accordance with the Act, DER classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the 
environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated - remediation required or possibly contaminated - 
investigation required, the Institute may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses. There were no sites classified as 
contaminated, remediation required.
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33 Events occurring after the reporting period

There are no significant events occuring after balance sheet date that materially impact the financial statements.

34 Explanatory statement

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between actual results for 2013 and 2014 are shown below.
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than $200,000. 

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2014
2014 2014

Estimate Actual Variance
$ $ $

Income 
Fee for service 2,500,131        2,771,983      271,852 
Student fees and charges 2,558,627        1,788,728      (769,899)        

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 33,159,229      31,559,560    (1,599,669)     
Supplies and services 9,080,760        7,813,288      (1,267,472)     
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,786,392        3,509,793      (276,599)        
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 658,239           (12,002,967)  (12,661,206)   

Fee For Service

Student Fees and Charges

Higher revenue in 2014 is due to increased commercial activity with Portfolio Managers having fee for service targets in 2014 in addition to 
Pilbara Skills Centre.

Lower revenue in 2014 is due to non achievement of SCH targets due to lower demand for training in 2014 as a result of the downturn in the 
mining sector.
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Employee Benefits Expense
Lower expense in 2014 is due to :
- PD expenses were reclassified to Supplies and Services in 2014 Annual Financial Statements - $285k.
- Lower salaries, wages, on-costs and other employee expenses due to the restructure implemented in September 2014 - $188k.
- Lower district allowance expense due to the reduction in the rates effective 1 July 2014 - $363k.

Supplies and Services
Lower expense in 2014 is due to 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Changes in Asset Revaluation Surplus

- Lower Government Regional Officers' Housing expenses in 2014 due to the change in eligibility in the policy from staff at level 3 to level 
4, reduction in rental prices within the Pilbara and the restructure implemented in September 2014 - $764k.

The above decreasing expenses were offset by the below costs that increased in 2014:
- PD expenses were reclassified from Supplies and Services in 2014 Annual Financial Statements - ($205k).

- Higher staff and non staff travel expenses in 2014 - ($31k).

The Section 40 estimate was based on half a percentage increase in the value of Land and Buildings but the actual revaluations included a 
substantial devaluation of the Pundulmurra Village Land and Buildings due to the change in the use of the accommodation village in 2014.

- Lower leasing and other expenses in 2014 due to cost reduction strategies - $148k.
- Audit Fees expenses reclassified to other expenses in 2014 Annual Financial Statements - $105k.

- Lower repairs, maintenance, equipment, minor and major works expenses mainly due to the demolition of the Walkington Theatre and 
Pundulmurra Campus Houses being deferred  to January 2015 as well equipment purchased costing more than $5k which were 
capitalised as assets  - $991k.
- Lower Consultancies and Contract Services expenses in 2014 due to non achievement of SCH targets - $326k.
- Lower Consumable expenses in 2014 due to cost reduction strategies - $131k.
- Lower Marketing and Advertising expenses in 2014 due to the Government freeze - $79k.

- Higher utilities costs in 2014 due to rate increases by Horizon Power - ($359k).

Lower expense in 2014 is due to the delay in finalising the Pundulmurra Education Investment Funding project and delay in delivery of 
ordered equipment.

89Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report



Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

34 Explanatory statement (continued)

2014 2013 Variance
$ $ $

Income 
Fee for service 2,771,983     2,243,533 528,450        
Student fees and charges 1,788,728     1,371,865 416,863        
Other revenue 1,145,808     2,065,716 (919,908)       
Service appropriation 33,613,149   37,097,691  (3,484,542)    
Other Income from State Government 1,932,667     572,693 1,359,974     
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 31,559,560   33,929,541  (2,369,981)    
Supplies and services 7,813,288     8,784,589 (971,301)       
Other expenses 2,627,949     2,090,262 537,687        
Changes in asset revaluation surplus (12,002,967)  (6,918,894)   (5,084,073)    

Fee For Service

Student Fees and Charges
Higher revenue in 2014 is due to the introduction of the Entitlement Model by the WA State Government with higher student fees rates.
Other Revenue
Lower revenue in 2014 is due to:
  - lower rental income received for Pundulmurra Village in 2014 as the lease agreement with ESS was terminated in June 2014 - ($232k)
  - No sponsorship revenue received from Woodside for the Karratha Electrical & Instrumentation Centre (2013 - $473k)
  - No funding received for the Chevron Gorgon Project - Indigenous Trades Training funding received (2013 - $54k)
  - No donations received in 2014 (2013 - $31k)
  - Recoup from DTWD for unpaid Pindan invoice received in 2013 - ($52k)
  - lower rental and facilities income in 2014 due to lower demand - ($224k)
  - lower funding received from the Shire of Roebourne & Pilbara Iron for the Early Learning Scholarship Program in 2014 - ($42k)

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2014

Higher revenue in 2014 is due to increased commercial activity with Portfolio Managers having fee for service targets in 2014 in addition to 
Pilbara Skills Centre.
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

The above was offset by the following increase in other revenue:
- Other Grants received from DTWD for Capital and Maintenance upgrades - $160K
- increase in Polytechnic West Adult Migrant English Program revenue received in 2014 - $20K
- increase in other miscelleneous revenue received in 2014 - $8k

Service Appropriation

Other Income from State Government

Employee Benefits Expense
Lower expense in 2014 is due to:

- Lower district allowance expense due to the reduction in the rates effective 1 July 2014 - ($859k).
- These were partially offset by higher casual salaries expenses in 2014 - $328k.

Supplies and Services
Lower expense in 2014 is due to 

- Higher utilities costs in 2014 due to rate increases by Horizon Power - $253k.
- Higher staff and non staff travel expenses in 2014 - $86k.

- Lower Government Regional Officers' Housing expenses in 2014 due to the change in eligibility in the policy from 
staff at level 3 to level 4, reduction in rental prices within the Pilbara and the restructure implemented in 
September 2014 - ($1.303m).
- Lower Voluntary Severence Scheme payments in 2014 - ($536k).

Higher revenue in 2014 is due to $1.8m funding received in 2014 for the demolition of the Walkington Theatre and Pundulmurra houses. This 
was partially offset by a lower recoup from DTWD for the Voluntary Severence Scheme $103k (2013: $573k ).

Lower revenue in 2014 is due to non achievement of SCH targets, lower Government Regional Officers' Housing Funding received in 2014 and 
Treasury corrective measures.

- Lower Consumable expenses in 2014 due to non achievement of SCH targets - ($197k).
- Lower Consultancies and Contract Services expenses in 2014 due to cost reduction strategies - ($945k).
- Lower repairs, maintenance, equipment, minor and major works expenses mainly due to equipment 
commissioned to assets and cost reduction strategies - ($141k).
- Lower leasing and other expenses in 2014 due to cost reduction strategies - ($27k).
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Other Expenses
Higher expense in 2014 is due to 

Changes in Asset Revaluation Surplus

35 Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk

- Higher workers compensation premium in 2014 due to an increased claims experience for the 2012/13 financial 
year  - $651k.
- Lower buildings repairs & maintenance and other expenses in 2014 due to cost reduction strategies - ($113k).

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Institute’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Institute.  

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross 
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 35(c) ‘Financial instruments 
disclosures’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’.

Credit risk associated with the Institute’s financial assets is minimal because the Institute trades only with recognised, creditworthy third 
parties. The Institute has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit 
history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Institute's exposure to bad debt is minimal. 
At the end of the reporting period there are no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables and 
payables. The Institute has limited exposure to financial risks. The Institute's overall risk management program focuses on managing  the risk 
identified below:

- The 2014 revaluation of Land and Buildings include a substantial devaluation of the Pundulmurra Village Land and Buildings due to the 
change in the use of the accommodation village in 2014.
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(b) Categories of financial instruments

2014 2013
$ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,114,841   3,181,333  
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 4,028,266   2,643,605  
Receivables (a) 650,958      2,202,307  

Other Financial Assets
Cash Investments 6,428,289   6,000,000  

Financial Liabilities
Payables 1,261,599   1,607,665  
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) 2,123,119   2,152,346  

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Other than as detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 35(c), the Institute is not  exposed to material interest  rate risk 
because the majority of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and it has no borrowings.

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Institute is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk through 
its trading in the normal course of business.  The Institute has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of 
appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Institute's income or the 
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Institute does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks 
(for example, equity securities or commodity prices changes). 
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(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

Carrying 
Amount

 Not past due 
and not 

impaired 
Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

 3 months 
to 1 year 

1-5 
Years 

 More than 
5 years 

 Impaired 
Financial 

Assets 
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
2014

Cash and cash equivalents 2,114,841     2,114,841 -           
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 4,028,266     4,028,266 -           
Receivables  (a) 650,958        496,953 100,501   46,815     475         6,215       (b)
Other Financial Assets
Cash Investments 6,428,289     6,428,289 

13,222,354   13,068,349 100,501   46,815     475         -      -           6,215       
2013

Cash and cash equivalents 3,181,333     3,181,333 - -           -          -      -           -           
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 2,643,605     2,643,605 - -           -          -      -           -           
Receivables  (a) 2,202,307     1,964,804 - 170,985   46,259    7,367  -           12,890     (b)
Other Financial Assets
Cash Investments 6,000,000     6,000,000 

14,027,245   13,789,742 170,985   46,259    7,367  12,890     

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).
(b)  Impaired Receivables relate to debtors over 120 days. In 2014 it is expected that only $6,215 (2013: $12,890) will be recovered. The carrying 
amount of receivables before deducting the impairment loss was $47,239 (2013: $32,118). 

The following table discloses the Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Institute's maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying anmount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the 
ageing of financial asssets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior 
management of the Institute.

Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired
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Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
35 Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
Interest Rate

Variable 
Interest Rate

 Non-Interest 
Bearing 

 Nominal 
Amount 

Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

 3 months to 
1 year 

1-5 
Years 

 More 
than 5 
years 

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2014

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
   Cash on hand 0.00%               3,960            3,960              3,960            3,960 
   Commonwealth Operating Bank Account 2.62%        2,058,687    2,058,687       2,058,687     2,058,687 
    Pundulmurra Village Commonwealth BOS  
    account

1.05%             52,194         52,194            52,194          52,194 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
    27th Pay - Restricted Cash 2.62%           253,297       253,297          253,297        253,297 

    VET Fee Help 2.62%           193,701       193,701          193,701        193,701 

    Pundulmurra Education Investment Funding 2.46%           362,151 -         362,151 -            362,151        362,151            -   -         -             -   

    EIC-Woodside Sponsorship Funding 
     

3.09%           930,000       930,000          930,000      930,000 
    EIC-Woodside Sponsorship Funding 
    Commonwealth BOS Account

2.50%           341,458       341,458          341,458        341,458 

    Demolition of Walkington Theatre Funding 2.62%        1,947,659    1,947,659       1,947,659     1,947,659 
Receivables  (a) 0.00%           650,958        650,958          650,958        597,453    46,815          6,690 
Other Financial Assets
Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit 3.64% 6,000,000       6,000,000   6,000,000     6,000,000  
Pundulmurra Village Commonwealth 7 month 
fixed term deposit

2.98%           428,289       428,289          428,289      428,289 

13,222,354     7,358,289   5,209,147   654,918 13,222,354   5,810,560    46,815   7,364,979  -    -        
Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00% 1,261,599       -              -              1,261,599 1,261,599     1,261,599    
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) 0.00% 2,123,119       2,123,119 2,123,119     2,123,119    

3,384,718       3,384,718 3,384,718     3,384,718    
(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

The following table details the Institute’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest 
and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.
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Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

35 Financial instruments (continued)

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate
 Non-Interest 

Bearing 
 Nominal 
Amount 

Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

 3 months 
to 1 year 

1-5 
Years 

 More 
than 5 
years 

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2013

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
   Cash on hand 0.00% 3,960            - -             3,960          3,960 3,960           -           -             - -        
   Commonwealth Operating Bank Account 3.04% 2,861,304     - 2,861,304 -              2,861,304 2,861,304    -           -             - -        
   Commonwealth 3 month fixed term deposit 0.04% 316,069        316,069      -             -              316,069 -               316,069   -             - -        

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
    27th Pay - Restricted Cash 2.40% 853,585        - 853,585 -              853,585 853,585       -           -             - -        
    Demolition of Walkington Theatre Funding 2.40% 200,000        - 200,000 -              200,000 200,000       -           -             - -        
    Pundulmurra Education Investment Funding 2.27% 590,020        - 590,020 -              590,020 590,020       -           -             - -        
    EIC-Woodside Sponsorship Funding 0.20% 1,000,000     - 1,000,000 -              1,000,000 1,000,000    -           -             - -        

Receivables  (a) 0.00% 2,202,307     - -             2,202,307   2,202,307 1,964,804    170,985   46,259       7,721 -        
Other Financial Assets
Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit 0.34% 6,000,000     6,000,000   -             -              6,000,000 -               -           6,000,000  - -        

14,027,245   6,316,069   5,504,909 2,206,267   14,027,245 7,473,673    487,054   6,046,259  7,721 

Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00% 1,607,665     - -             1,607,665   1,607,665 1,607,665    -           -             - -        
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) (b) 0.00% 2,152,346     2,152,346   2,152,346 2,152,346    

3,760,011     - -             3,760,011   3,760,011 3,760,011    -           -             - -        
(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

(b) 2013 disclosure restated to include amount payable to the Department Of Training and Workforce Development for the clawback of DPA funding as a result of non-achievement 
of SCH targets by the Institute.
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Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
35 Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Surplus  Equity 

2014 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 2,110,881       (21,109) (21,109)               21,109 21,109 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,028,266       (40,283) (40,283)               40,283 40,283 

Other Financial Assets
Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit 6,000,000       (60,000) (60,000)               60,000 60,000 
Pundulmurra Village Commonwealth 7 
month fixed term deposit 428,289          (4,283) (4,283) 4,283 4,283 
Total Increase/(Decrease) (125,675)              (125,675)             125,675             125,675 

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Surplus  Equity 

2013 $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 3,177,373       (31,774) (31,774)               31,774 31,774 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,643,605       (26,436) (26,436)               26,436 26,436 
Other Financial Assets
Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit (a) 6,000,000       (20,400) (20,400)               60,000 60,000 

Total Increase/(Decrease) (78,610)                (78,610)               118,210             118,210 

Fair values

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is 
held constant throughout the reporting period.

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

- 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points

- 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points

(a) The change in the basis points has been limited to the effective interest rate as the rate cannot decrease below 0%.
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Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

36 Remuneration of members of the Institute and senior officers

$ 2014 2013
        $0 -  $10,000 *9 *10

$110,001  -$120,000 0 *1
$200,001  -$210,000 0 *1
$340,001 - $350,000 1 0

$ $
Base remuneration and superannuation 192,728            285,643        
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 19,632              (95,248) 
Other  benefits 137,264            132,206        
Total remuneration of the members of the Institute 349,624            322,601        

* Includes members of the Institute where periods of service are less than 12 months.
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of members of the Institute.

Remuneration of senior officers

2014 2013
$

$10,001 - $20,000 *1 *1
$80,001 - $90,000 1 0

$140,001 - $150,000 *1 0
$230,001 - $240,000 0 1
$270,001 - $280,000 1 0
$280,001 - $290,000 0 1
$290,001 - $300,000 0 *1

Remuneration of members of the Institute
The number of members of the Institute whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for 
the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute, whose total of fees, salaries, 
superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
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Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 14GLACT 13GLACT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

36 Remuneration of members of the Institute and senior officers (continued)
Remuneration of senior officers (continued) 2014 2013

$300,001 - $310,000 1 1
$360,001 - $370,000 1 0
$800,001 - $810,000 0 **1

$ $
Base remuneration and superannuation 492,558             1,214,383 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 38,769 15,870 
Other  benefits 658,052             721,389 
Total remuneration of senior officers 1,189,379          1,951,642 

* Includes senior officers where periods of service are less than 12 months.
** Includes a redundancy payment and deferred salary scheme reimbursement.
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 

37 Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators 82,000 94,250 

38 Related bodies
The Institute has no related bodies.

39 Affiliated bodies
The Institute has no affiliated bodies.

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of senior officers other than senior 
officers reported as members of the Institute.

The amount disclosed above differ from the amounts in note 9 'Other expenses'.
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Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014 2013
$ $

40 Supplementary financial information

(a) Write-Offs
      Bad debts 372,036             17,679 
      Inventory 4,263 2,081 

376,299             19,759 

41 Schedule of income and expenditure by service

The Institute provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (9) and that is Vocational Education and Training 
Delivery.
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES 

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 953, the annual estimates for the 2015 
year are hereby included in the 2014 Annual Report.  These estimates do not form 
part of the 2014 financial statements and are not subject to audit.  

101Pilbara Institute   I   2014 Annual Report



PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
Statement of Comprehensive Income

2015

Estimate
$

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 33,438,816
Supplies and services 9,863,041
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,281,421
Other expenses 1,942,399

Total Cost of Services 49,525,676

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 2,552,736
Student charges and fees 2,573,841
Ancillary trading 5,047
Interest revenue 88,750
Other revenue 1,148,479

Total Revenue 6,368,852

NET COST OF SERVICES 43,156,824

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State funds 33,982,622
Resources received free of charge 843,796
Total income from State Government 34,826,418

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (8,330,406)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation reserve 726,290

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (7,604,116)
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2015

Estimate
$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,312,555
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 284,087
Receivables 682,355
Other current assets 419,033
Total Current Assets 4,698,029

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 144,451,013
Total Non-Current Assets 144,451,013
TOTAL ASSETS 149,149,042

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 1,085,327
Provisions 2,716,672
Other current liabilities 515,299
Total Current Liabilities 4,317,298

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 726,854
Total Non-Current Liabilities 726,854
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,044,152

NET ASSETS 144,104,890

EQUITY
Contributed Equity 47,140,358
Reserves 100,099,667
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) (3,135,134)

TOTAL EQUITY 144,104,890
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2015

Estimate
$

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds 33,732,622
Cash distributed to owner (1,347,183)
Net cash provided by State Government 32,385,439

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (33,505,092)
Supplies and services (8,822,463)
GST payments on purchases (711,287)
Other payments (1,912,111)

Receipts
Fee for service 2,555,064
Student fees and charges 2,554,834
Ancillary trading 5,047
Interest received 157,178
GST receipts on sales 366,708
GST receipts from taxation authority 343,521
Other receipts 1,148,478

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (37,820,123)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of non-current physical assets 0

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 0

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held and cash equivalents (5,434,684)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 9,031,325

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 3,596,641
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
CHANGES IN EQUITY STATEMENT

2015

Estimate
$

Balance of equity at start of period 137,510,190

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Balance at start of period 32,941,541
Capital contribution 15,546,000
Other contributions by owners 0
Distributions to owners (1,347,183)
Balance at end of period 47,140,358

RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period 99,373,377
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors 0
Restated balance at start of period 99,373,377
Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation 726,290
Balance at end of period 100,099,667

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)
Balance at start of period 5,195,272
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors 0
Restated balance at start of period 5,195,272
Surplus/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period (8,330,406)
Gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity 0
Balance at end of period (3,135,134)

Balance of equity at end of period 144,104,890

Total income and expense for the period (7,604,116)
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PILBARA INSTITUTE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2014 

We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant 

and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Pilbara Institute’s performance, and fairly 

represent the performance of the Pilbara Institute for the year ended 31 December 2014. 

Nicole Roocke 5 March 2015 

Chairperson, Governing Council 

Pilbara Institute 

Marlene Boundy 

Managing Director  5 March 2015 

Member, Governing Council 

Pilbara Institute 
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Key Performance Indicator Information 
Effectiveness Indicators 
1. Student Satisfaction Survey

The table below presents information about the satisfaction levels amongst students at Pilbara 
Institute from 2010 to 2014. The figures are derived from the WA Student Satisfaction Survey 
which is used to measure the quality of the service provided by the Institute, and to gain a 
better understanding of their customers and their needs. 

The overall student satisfaction rating expresses the number of 'satisfied' and 'very satisfied' 
respondents.  The results provide an overall expression of how satisfied students are with 
various services provided by the Institute.  The survey results show a marked improvement in 
satisfaction in 2013 with a small decline in satisfaction the following year. 

In the 2014 Training WA Student Satisfaction Survey, 87.3% of students who responded were 
either very satisfied or satisfied with their chosen course at Pilbara Institute. Compared to the 
State average of 86.9% Pilbara Institute has continued to better the state average for two years 
in a row. 

Table 1 

2010 2011 2012 2013 
2014 

Target 
2014 

Pilbara 

Institute 
83.6% 89.9% 85.2% 90.6% 88.0% 87.3% 

Western 
Australia 86.3% 88.2% 86.3% 85.9% 86.9% 

Notes: Source: Patterson Market Research (2014) Student Satisfaction Survey. Derivation: Confidence interval is ± 3.16% and a confidence level of 

95%. Total population of 1,739 with a sample size of 342 students.  Comments: In 2012 a new weighting system has been implemented compared to 

past annual reports.  
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2. Student Outcomes Survey

The Student Outcomes Survey is conducted on behalf of National Centre for Vocational 
Education Research (NCVER) by I‐view Pty Ltd every two years.  The aim of the survey is to 
measure vocational education and training students' employment, further study and the 
opinions of the training undertaken.  Every two years, questionnaires are sent to a stratified 
(field of education, sex and age), randomly selected sample of Pilbara Institute graduates, who 
have successfully completed a qualification in the previous reporting period. 

The graduate achievement is a key performance indicator that measures the extent to which 
Pilbara Institute Graduates have wholly or partly achieved their main reason for undertaking 
the course.  

Table 2 

2011 2013 2014 

Pilbara Institute 93.3% 91.0% Not a collection 
year 

Western Australia 87.5% 86.7% 

Australia 85.7% 83.5% 

Notes: 

Comments: This is a biennial survey and 2014 is not a collection year. 

The Student Outcomes Survey covers students who have an Australian address as their usual address and are awarded a qualification (graduates), 

or who successfully complete part of a course and then leave the VET system (module completers). The scope of the survey is for Commonwealth, 

State funded and fee for service funding types. Students who undertake recreational, leisure or personal enrichment (short) courses are excluded. 

This scope has been in place since 2005. Prior to 2005, information was only collected from students undertaking Commonwealth/State 

funded programs. 

3. Graduates in Employment

This particular KPI involves the proportion of graduates in employment, demonstrating the 
extent to which the Institute is providing relevant quality training that improves student 
employability.  The performance indicator shows the proportion of graduates responding to the 
NCVER Student Outcomes Survey who were in paid employment as at 25th May, the year 
following graduation. 

Table 3 

2011 2013 2014 

Pilbara Institute 92.2% 89.3% Not a collection year 

Western Australia 79.7% 81.4% 

Australia 77.1% 78.2% 

Notes: 

Comments: This is a biennial survey and 2014 is not a collection year. 
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4a    Achievement of the 2014 Institute Profile 

Pilbara Institute is resourced to deliver courses under Government-purchased funding 
guidelines to meet consumer demand and respond to local community needs, individual 
requirements and workforce development plans.  This performance indicator reports the 
effectiveness of the Institute in meeting Delivery and Performance Agreement targets. 

The diversity of the delivery indicates the extent to which the Institute has met its strategic 
training needs as defined in the State Training Profile as well as additional delivery provided 
under a fee‐for‐service arrangement.  

Profile groups changed in 2014 from WADTE groups to ANZCO groups. Both groupings have 
been disclosed to provide comparative information. 

Table 5 DTWD Report 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2014 

WADTE Group Title Actual Actual Actual Planned Achieved % 
Achieved 

01B - Visual & 
Performing Arts 13,865 17,970 18,620 17,862 11,865 66.43% 

02A - Automotive 13,404 16,982 15,489 26,759 10,299 38.49% 

03A - Building & 
Construction 112,683 64,737 55,773 80,809 69,453 85.95% 

04A - Community 
Service Workers 12,728 10,142 11,365 7,118 6,669 93.69% 

04B - Education & 
Childcare 89,250 117,670 98,625 89,053 74,230 83.35% 

04C – Health 27,171 23,440 17,925 33,070 26,700 80.74% 

05A - Finance Insurance 
Property Service 
Workers 

11,908 14,219 10,471 11,204 9,582 85.52% 

09A - Engineering & 
Drafting 31,835 13,489 16,863 13,583 17,474 128.65% 
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2014 

WADTE Group Title Actual Actual Actual Planned Achieved % 
Achieved 

09B - Metal & Mining 101,363 105,734 82,419 72,547 91,916 126.70% 

10B - Forestry, Farming 
& Landcare 1,675 210 4,483 9,648 2,489 25.80% 

10D - Horticulture 11,218 8,371 5,855 13,703 15,539 113.40% 

12A - Personal Service 9,435 12,020 14,777 18,651 11,222 60.17% 

13A - Cooking 14,008 23,583 21,013 20,519 12,568 61.25% 

13B - Hospitality 9,040 10,851 6,981 6,225 9,926 159.45% 

13C - Tourism 270 0 - - 0 0 

14A - Transport Trades, 
Storage & Associated 21,250 8,171 5,853 5,864 7,392 126.06% 

15B - Electrical Trades 33,841 42,472 46,788 65,726 54,198 82.46% 

16A - Accounting & 
Other Business Services 25,565 19,520 21,095 14,214 14,185 99.80% 

16B - Management 50,775 55,875 50,565 40,944 22,925 55.99% 

16C - Office & Clerical 54,780 83,587 41,055 48,344 35,370 73.16% 

17A - Computing 2,445 1,060 - - 0 0 

18A - Science & 
Technical Workers 46,900 34,500 51,040 35,768 28,925 80.87% 

19B - Adult Literacy/ESL 41,820 50,875 36,715 45,650 29,270 64.12% 

19E - Targeted Access & 
Participation Courses 35,710 25880 46,844 53,000 24,378 46.00% 
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Comments: targets have been adjusted and revised throughout the year. Targets are based on the original DPA for 2014. 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2014 

WADTE Group Title Actual Actual Actual Planned Achieved % 
Achieved 

Total Profile Delivery 772,939 761,358 680,614 730,261 586,575 80.32% 

Non Profile Delivery 177,222 209,814 174,785 156,082 

Institute Total Delivery 950,161 971,172 855,399 742,657 
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Delivery Profile by Major ANZSCO Group 

Entitlement Non 
Entitlement 

Total 
Planned 

Achieved 
2014 

% 
Achieved 

EBT IBT IBT SCH 

1- MANAGERS 0 9,555 3,084 13,000 12,639 97% 

2- PROFESSIONALS 10,560 37,095 67,982 47,655 70% 

3- TECHNICIANS AND TRADES WORKERS 102,146 2,894 64,226 176,047 169,266 96% 

4- COMMUNITY AND PERSONAL SERVICE 
WORKERS 

7,987 28,540 59,228 108,338 95,755 88% 

5- CLERICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE WORKERS 6,650 0 52,750 95,186 59,400 62% 

6 - SALES WORKERS 0 0 0 0 0    0 

7- MACHINERY OPERATORS AND DRIVERS 25 0 41,081 25,293 41,106 163% 

8-LABOURERS 582 0 92,540 130,279 93,122 71% 

F- FOUNDATION SKILLS 0 0 0 114,136 67,632 59% 

G- GENERAL EDUCATION 0 7,645 59,987 0 0     0 

Total SCH 117,390 59,194 409,991  730,261 586,575 80% 
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Profile Analysis for Pilbara Institute 
Definition: The first table indicates the quota and actual achievement of SCH in the 

profiled Department of Education and Training Industry Group categories.  The 

classification of these Industry Groups is based on the occupation or outcome the 

course is intended to serve, and highlights the Institute’s performance in achieving 

industry delivery targets. 

The second table indicates delivery profile by major ANZCO groupings. The 

classification definitions are based on the skill level and specialisation usually 

necessary to perform the tasks of the specific occupation, or of most occupations 

in the group. 

Derivation: DPA data represents the actual achievement of SCH in respective 

years. Planned data is obtained from the DPA and actual SCH from the Institute 

Unified Enrolments System (UE).  Non‐profile delivery SCH is the actual SCH count 

of enrolments not funded under the DPA in UE.  These are Fee‐For‐Service 

programs that are delivered to meet local industry and community demands for 

specialised training. 

Variances in delivery by more than 10% are explained by the following reasons: 

Demand less than expected ANZCO Groups – Professionals, Community and 
Personal Service Workers, Clerical and Administrative Workers, Labourers and 
Foundation Skills. 

Demand greater than expected ANZCO Group – Machinery Operators and Drivers 

Planning for delivery continues to be a challenge in the Pilbara due to the strong 
economic drivers and constantly changing market demands. 
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4b. Profile Achievement (DPA) of 2014 Profile, Planned vs Achieved SCH 

This performance indicator shows the percentage of student curriculum hours (SCH) 
achieved for activities as contracted with the Department of Training and Workforce 
Development for vocational education and training delivery through the Delivery and 
Performance Agreement. 

Profile Achievement = Actual Delivery and Performance Agreement SCH 
Achieved/Target SCH contained within Delivery and Performance Agreement 

Table 6 

Planned Actual % Achieved 

2010 730,910* 751,461 103% 

2011 730,910* 772,939 106% 

2012 820,000 761,358 93% 

2013 813,500 680,614 83.66% 

2014 730,261 586,575 80.32% 

Notes: 

Source: Pilbara Institute Delivery and Performance Agreement for planned SCH and Institute Management Information 

System for Actual SCH. Comments: Planned targets are based on the original DPA.  Targets have been adjusted and revised 

throughout the year. Note *: Planned SCH figures for 2010 -2011 have been revised to reflect original DPA targets 

Efficiency Indicator 
Cost Per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) 

This is a measure of the extent to which the Institute is able to efficiently use resources 
for the delivery of vocational education and training.  The overall cost per SCH is an 
efficiency measure that shows the aggregate unit cost of delivery output per SCH 
based on the delivery costs (Total Cost of Services) as detailed in the Financial 
Statements. 

Table 7 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Target 2014 

Pilbara 
Institute $40.39 $43.95* $50.65 $51.04** $57.50*** $51.87 $61.28**** 

Notes:  
Source: Financial Statements and Institute Management Information System.  
Derivation: The total delivery cost per SCH is calculated by dividing the total cost of services measured on an accrual basis by the total 
SCH delivered.  The total SCH is the total number of enrolments multiplied by the hourly duration of these modules as registered in the 
Institute Management Information System in accordance with the Australian Vocational Education and Training Management Information 
Statistical Standard. Delivery from all funding sources is included.  The total cost of services figure is obtained from the Annual Financial 
Statements.  
Comments:* The reason for the significant increase in cost per SCH for 2010 is that Building Maintenance funds received through Better 
Institute Facilities were received in 2009 but spent in 2010. **The 2012 increase was due to non-achievement of SCH targets. *** The 
reason for the increase in cost per SCH for 2013 is non-achievement of SCH targets; (b) higher employee benefit cost due to increase in 
Government Regional Officers Housing costs in 2013 and the 2013 Voluntary Severance Scheme payout. **** Non-achievement of 2014 
profile and non-profile SCH targets due to lower demand for training resulting in lower SCH. 
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Ministerial Directives 

Other Financial Disclosures 

Pricing Policies of Services Provided 

As a statutory authority and publicly funded provider of Vocational Education and Training, 

Pilbara Institute follows policy guidelines contained in the Fees and Charges Policy Guidelines 

for Publicly Funded Registered Training Organisations and Programs, published by the 

Western Australian Department of Training and Workforce Development.  Resource Fees are 

set by the Institute to cover materials to be used by students in the course of instruction.  Fee 

for Services courses are priced on the Ministerial Guidelines Relating to Commercial Activities 

by Public Training Providers 2009. 
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Governance Disclosures 
Conflict of Interest Statement 

Pilbara TAFE was established on the 1st of January 2003 as a result of the amalgamation of 
Eastern Pilbara College of TAFE and West Pilbara College of TAFE. In September 2011 the 
Institute was renamed Pilbara Institute. The organisation operates under the Vocational 
Education and Training Act 1996. 

At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no Board 
Members or Senior Officers, or firms of which Members or Senior Officers are members, or 
entities in which Members or Senior Officers have substantial interests, had any interests in 
existing or proposes contracts with Pilbara Institute and Members of Senior Officers. 

Other Legal Requirements 
Advertising 

Total Expenditure Accounts paid 

Advertising agencies 46,418 Media Decisions OMD 

Staff advertising (Recruitment  32,032 Adcorp 

Direct Mail organisations nil nil 

Market Research Organisation  nil nil 

Polling Organisations nil nil 
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 

Number of strategies 
planned 
(Strategies planned whether 
implemented or not). 

Number of 
strategies 
completed 
(Strategies that were 
completed. Include on-
going strategies). 

Number of strategies 
progressed through 
contractors 
(Strategies implemented by 
contractors. Not the 
number of contractors). 

Outcome 1 

People with disabilities have 
the same opportunities as 
other people to access the 
services and events 
organized by Pilbara 
Institute. 

9 0 

Outcome 2 

People with disabilities have 
the same opportunities as 
other people to access 
buildings and facilities of the 
Institute. 

3 0 

Outcome 3 

People with disabilities 
receive information from the 
Institute in a format that will 
enable them to access the 
information readily as other 
people are able to access it. 

4 0 

Outcome 4 

People with disabilities 
receive the same level and 
quality of service from the 
staff of Pilbara Institute as 
other people receive from 
the institute. 

1 0 

Outcome 5 

People with disabilities have 
the same opportunities as 
other people to make 
complaints to Pilbara 
Institute. 

0 0 

Outcome 6 

People with disabilities have 
the same opportunities as 
other people to participate in 
any public consultation 
performed by of for Pilbara 
Institute. 

3 0 
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Human Resource Management Standards 

During 2014 several initiatives were implemented. These included: 

 Strong focus on HR Policy review and improvement. 35 Policies reviewed with 19 
completed and published, 5 withdrawn, 7 replaced with new policies and 4 currently in 
final draft. 

 Roll out updated Pilbara Institute’s Code of Conduct. 
 Staff training and education sessions “Coping with Change”, “Role of Flexible Learning”, 

Lean Thinking & Cultures of Kindness”  
 Ongoing training for lecturing Staff in TAELLN411 - Address Language, Literacy & 

Numeracy Skills - 30% of staff completed in 2014 Review of Organisational Structure, 
consultation and implementation of new Organisational Structure. 

Breach claims against the Public Sector Standards in Human Resources Management lodged 
under the Public Sector Management (Breaches of Public Sector Standards) Procedures 2005 
at Pilbara Institute during 2014 were: 

Standard Outcome Actions 

Disciplinary Issues 
Raised 6 Reprimand and / or 

warning 3 

Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct 

Equal Opportunity Management Plan Outcomes 2014 

Indicator 2013 
Target 

2013 
Outcome 

2014 
Target 

2014 
Outcome 

Women represented in management Tiers 2 
& 3 60% 60% 60% 61.51% 

Employees from culturally-diverse 
backgrounds 5% 15.7% 5% 14.3% 

Aboriginal Australia employees 10% 5.7% 10% 4.6% 
Employees who identify as people with 
disabilities 5% 3.5% 5% 2.5% 

Employees who are youth 6% 2.3% 6% 2% 
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Recordkeeping Plan 

Pilbara Institute is a signatory to the sector wide Recordkeeping Plan (RKP) which was 
approved by the State Records Commission on the 7 December, 2012. A review of the RKP 
will be completed and submitted to the State Records Office by 7 December, 2017. This RKP 
complies with s19 of the State Records Act 2000. 

In 2014 record management policies and procedures have been reviewed and updated to 
reflect changes resulting from the ongoing implementation of Total Records and Information 
Management (TRIM) as the record management system.  To date 44 employees have been 
trained in the use of TRIM and training will continue for staff identified as requiring access. 

Government Policy Requirements 

Occupational Health, Safety and Injury Management 

Occupational Safety and Health Initiatives 

Pilbara Institute is committed to the safety and health of staff and students and the continuous 
improvement process. The Institute promotes occupational safety and health (OSH) information 
and systems within the Institute and provides guidance to staff and students through these 
systems. 

Occupational safety and health initiatives undertaken in 2014 include: 

 Development and implementation of a specific Institute Safety Health Management Plan 
(SHMP) which outlines and details how OSH issues are to be dealt with and allocates 
responsibility. 

 Development, implementation and promotion of Institute Heat Stress Guidance Note for 
Managers, Lecturers and all staff. 

 Development and review of OSH initiatives/measures for Return to Industry lecturing staff 
participants. 

 Reviewed and implemented updated Asbestos Management Plans at each Campus. 

 Continued the simplification and distribution of OSH information, policies, emergency 
Management Plans and guidelines. 

 New internal webpage design broadcasting current and topical OSH Advice notices on 
specific subjects 

 Restructure of OSH Committee Agenda to incorporate Standing OSH Issues Review at 
each meeting. 

 Restructure and rationalization of local-site OSH Committee structure to incorporate new 
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organisational structure reducing number of local OSH Committees to three (3). 

To comply with the mandated manager and supervisor training requirements, the Institute 
conducted face to face RiskBase training sessions with 57% of Managers focusing on their 
role, responsibility and involvement.  

Pilbara Institute sought consultation with employees on OSH issues through regular meetings 
with elected safety and health representatives and appointed managers. The process being:- 

 Four (4) local-site OSH Committees to discuss local OSH issues and to refer unresolved 
issues to the Standing OSH Committee; 

 Standing OSH Committee which met six times to discuss strategic OSH issues and 
provide direction to local OSH Committees and to provide resolution of issues and has 
maintained regular contact with statutory authorities, unions, other State Training Providers 
and other government agencies in order to oversee the distribution of relevant OSH 
material and advice. 

Annual performance 
for 2011/2012 against 
the following targets 

Indicator 
Target 2013/2014 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 

Number of fatalities  Zero (0) Zero (0) Zero (0) 

Lost time 
injury/disease  
(LTI/D) incident rate  

Zero (0) or 10% 
reduction on 
previous year 

1.03 1.16

Lost time injury 
severity rate  

Zero (0) or 10% 
reduction on 
previous year 

0.51 Zero (0)

Percentage of injured  
workers returned  
to work within: 

     13 weeks  
     28 weeks  

Actual percentage 
to be reported 100% 

N/A 
100% 
N/A 

Percentage of  
managers trained in  
occupational safety  
health and injury 
management  
responsibilities  

100% 100% 57%
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Summary of OSH Findings and Commitments 

Pilbara Institute Directors and Managers have maintained and demonstrated a strong and 
ongoing commitment to occupational health and safety and have maintained OSH priorities 
whilst undergoing organisational change.  All staff are encouraged to participate in the 
continuous improvement processes and provide feedback.  Arrangements are in place to have 
an external audit OSH Assessment against the WorkSafe Plan and the results of that audit will 
be incorporated into the Institute Safety, Health & Management Plan (SHMP) for action and 
implementation. 
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